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1422 Oopyrigkt Regtstration Bill. [ASSEMBLY.] Questions. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

THURSDA Y1 8 DECEMBER, 1898. 

The SPEAKER took the chair at half-past 3 
o'clock. 

QUESTIONS. 
RECENT LOCOMOTIVE BOILER ExPI,OSIONS. 

Mr. MA UG HAN asked the Secretary for 
Railways-

l. Have inquiries been held respecting the locomo­
tive boiler explosions which recently occurred in the 
Roma street railway sards? 

2. If so, what are the name;; :tnd occupations of the 
officials who conducted the inquiries; also the names 
and occupations of the persons giving evidence? 

3. Were the proceedings fully reported P 
4. I! so, will the Jiinister be good enough to lay upon 

the table of the House the reports of same? 

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS 
replied-

1. Yes. 
2. FIRST EXPI.OSION. 

Board of Inquiry.-Jii.r. H. Horniblow, locomotive 
e11gineer; ~Ir. J. :MeGrath, traffic manager, Rockhamp­
ton; and ::\Ir. A. 0. H. Palmer, assistant engineer (Chief 
Engineer's Branch). 

1f'Unesses Examined.-1f.r. R. T. Darker, locomotive 
superintendent, Southern Division; )Ir. T. Hook, loco­
motive foreman, Brisbane; :Mr. J. Bowling, leading 
boilermaker, Ipswirh; 1Ir. n. ::1fcLaren, acting engine­
driver, Brisbane; :llr. 1L Kelly, shunting-driver, Bris­
bane; :llr W. Bunnett, leading boilermaker. Ipswich; 
1\Ir. J. Ruddle, ll)comotive foreman, Ipswich; Mr. ·w. 
Fletcher, engine-fitter, Brisbane: 1\fr. T. Rees, fitter, 
Ipswich; and l\Ir. J. Duthie, running-shed foreman, 
Ipswich. 

SECOND EXPLOSION. 

Board of Inquiry.-Mr. C. H, Pemberton, locomotive 
superintendent., Rockhaml .. ton; )fr. R. Dunbar, traffic 
manager, Brisbane; and J.\!lr. A. C. H. Pahner. assistant 
engineer (Chief Engineer's Branch). 

Witnesses Examined. -11r. J. Bowling, leading 
boilermaker, Ipswich; J\1r. J·. Cashin, boi.lel'maker, 
Ipswich; Mr. W. Bunnett. leadmg boilermaker, 
Ipswich; Mr. J. Ruddle, locomotive foreman, Ipswich; 
and Mr. T. Rees, ste:·am-gauge tester, Ipswich. 

3. Yes. 
4. The Commi~sioner is of opinion that the investi­

gation with regard to the s:econd explosion cannot be 
considered complete without the evidence of the loco­
motive superintendent, Ipswich {who is now in New 
Zealar.d on official business}. There will. however, be 
no objection to place the report and evidence in both 
cases on the table of the House when the latter is com­
plete. 
SPEECH BY THE SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS AT 

RocKHAMPTON. 
Mr. STEW ART (for Mr. Kidston) asked the 

Secretary for Railways-
1. When speakmg lately at a banquet at Rockhamp­

ton, CUtl the hon. gentleman say~as reported in the 
Iloclchamplon 1viorniny Bulletin of 2~th November-

" Should anotber conference be called, Queens­
land would be repreFented at it. He would go 
further, und say that she would be sectionally 
repl'esented. He believed that Southern Queens­
land womd send down five delegates, Northern 
Queensland three. and Central Queensland two"? 

2. Is that report substantially correct P 
3. If so. d;d tbe honourable gentleman make that 

statement with the knowledge and consent of his 
colleagues in the Ministry ? 
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The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS 
replied-

l. At the banquet referred to, I did say something to 
the same effect as that quoted. 

2. Not having read the report issued by the Roc/c­
ham,pton 1llorning Bulletin, I cannot say whether it is 
correct or not. 

3. I should recommend the honourable gentleman to 
ask my colleagues. 

HARBOUR BOARDS ACT OF 1892 
AMENDME~T BILL. 

On the motion of the TREASURER, it was 
formally resolved-

That the House will, at its next sitting, resolve itself 
into 11 Committee of the Whole, to consider of the 
desirableness of introducing a Bill to ftlrther amend 
the Harbour Boards Act, 1892. 

BRISBANE HARBOUR BOARD BILL. 
On the motion of the TitEASURER, it was 

formally resolved-
That the House will, at its next sitting, resolve itself 

into a Committee or the Whole, to consider of the 
desira.bleness of introducing a Bill tc) constitute a 
harbour board for the harbour of Brisbane, and for 
other purposes relating thereto. 

EVIDENCE FURTHER AMENDMENT 
BILL. 

SECOND READING, 

Mr. DRAKE : ThiR measure provides for the 
examination and licensing of shorthand writers, 
and the gist of the whole Bill will be found in 
the first two clauses, the first providing for the 
examination, and the becond for the licensing of 
shorthand writers. I think that at the present 
date I have no need to refer to the great advan­
tages that are to be derived from the use of 
shorthand writing, both in courts of law and 
elsewhere. But there is this to be said in regard 
to taking evidence in shorthand in courts of 
law, and that is, that the advantage is not so 
great in short cases which are finished in the 
same day, because then the case is entirely dis­
posed of-unless, of course, there is an appeal­
before the notes ce~n be reproduced in print or 
typewritten. But with regard to cases of longer 
duration, extending over •everal days, I think 
there is a consensus of opinion that a l"flry 
gre~t ad vantage will be derived from the employ­
ment of shorthand writers. In fact, it has come 
to he almost admitted that shorthand wliters 
are indispensable in trials of any length. 
The advantage to be derived from the employ­
ment of shorthand writers in courts of law 
varies also in certain cases. In some cases 
the judges are more expert than in others in 
taking down notes themselves, and, of course, 
in such cases the advantage is not so pro­
nounced as in those where the taking of 
notes is more or less a burden to the judge. 
There can be no doubt in regard to the saving 
effected in cases of any length by the employ­
ment of shorthand writerR to take evidence, 
because one of the great sources of expenee in 
lonv, trials is the fees paid to counsel, solicitors, 
and witnesses, and if you can shorten the case 
by the employment of shorthand writers you 
necessarily diminish the expenses ,1f the trial to 
that extent. That it is a great advantage in 
cases of any duration is proved by the fact that. 
there never is now a trictl of a;1y length either in 
Great Britain or in any of these colonies where 
the assistance of shorthand writers is not caller! 
in. But; up to the present time in Queensland 
no steps have been taken to give a status to 
shorthand writers or to subject them to examina­
tion so as to ensure that they shall be efficient 
for the discharge of their duty. Thttt is what 
this Bill seeks to do. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC INSTRUCTION : 
What about the technical college classes ? 

Mr. DRAKE : The hon. gentleman will s~e 
that this g.,es further. I think this m;asure, If 
carried, will provide a means by. whwh those 
who h:we gone through the techmcal classes of 
the school of arts, and young men and women 
who ha'e acquired a knowledge of shorthand 
in other educational institt.tions, may be able to 
show their fitness, and that they have qualified 
themselves for such appointments as are con­
templated by this Bill. Tlds Bi!l is practically 
a transcript, with a few alte_ratio~,,, of. an .Act 
which has been in force m Vwtr•rla ~mce 
18f!l. That Act was introduced in Victoria in 
1891 by a ]Jrivate member in the Legislative 
Council but it was at once taken up by 
the Go~ernment and wa" passed into la;v .. I 
throw that out as a snggeotion no v-that If tt:e 
Government like to relieve me of the responsi­
bility of the meusure I shall be very glad to 
band it over to them with the increased assu~­
ance I shall have that It shall become law this 
session, and the Government w~mld have the 
credit of having passed a useful measure. It 
was proposed when the Bill was introduced. in 
Victoria that it should be accepted ae a tentatn e 
nwasure for two years, but no lin1itation w~.s 
placed in the Bill, and the mea~ure has been m 
operation there since 1891, and IS foun:I to have 
given great eatisfaction. It has, I believe, ~1~on 
the means of introducing shorthand wrJtmg 
more extensively into the courts of law, 
and it has also given a status. to shorthand 
writers in that colony. I nm mformed that 
recently some cases heard in Queenslanrl were 
reported by shorthand writers who came from 
Victoria. I am informed also tbat one of t~e 
reasons why they obtained this employment m 
this colony was that they had the status con­
ferred upon them by this Victorian Act. I have 
no doubt their work was very \\ell done, but 
we have qu.it.e a sufficient number of competent 
shorthand writ0rs in Quc~enslancl to do all the 
work of the kind which may arbe in Queensland. 
The Secretary for Public· Instruction referred 
just now to the work that is being done 
by the technical cbsses at the school of arts. 
I can go furthPr back to nearly twenty years 
ago when, under regulations of the Hansa,rd 
staff cadet classev were e'tablished in connec­
tion 'with Hansard, under tne supervision of the 
chief of the staff ; and since then, in con­
sequence of the work which was done by .the 
Prmcipal Shorthand Writer, and the opetatwns 
of two very excellent associatio:'s of shortha~d 
writers, and the efforts of private people m 
this colony, a va~t number of young men and 
young women have been trained and become 
competent to do any work that ma:J: . be 
required in connection witb shorthand wntmg 
and typewriting. I am asking the House to p•ss 
this measure m <m1er that those shorthand 
writers who have made themselves competent 
may he able to pass examinations to show their 
fitness in thi-. colony and be !IcE'nsed as nnder 
the Act in Victoria by the Chief Justice for the 
work of taking evidence in the law conrts .. I 
have spoken now of the main objects of the Bill. 
The remainder of tlw Bill is really machinery to 
carry them out, and it is perhaps Jl<?t necessary 
for me in moving the Fecond re, dmg to refer 
to it more particularly. It pr~vides tha;t the 
Governor in Council mny appoint exanuner~~ 
and the exfiminations will be carried out by the 
Public Service B"ard. Applicants. for _Pxamina­
tion having passed the exarrnnatwn pre­
scribed--

At thirteen minutes to 4, 
The SPEAKER said : In consequence of the 

storm which is passing over, I think I had better 
adjourn the House for a short tune. I have not 
done so so fnr, becau,e the time for private 
members' business is so short. I can hear, and 
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perhaps hon. members can, but I am informed 
that the Hansard staff cannot hear, and if the 
hon. member wishes to be reported, perhaps it 
would be better to adjourn. 

HoNOURABLE MEMBERS: Hear, hear ! 
The SPEAKER : Very well, the bell shall 

he i'ung when the storm clears away. 
The House resumed at five minutes to 4 

o'clock. 
Mr: DRAKm: I desire to thank you, Mr. 

Speaker, fnr your consideration in adjourning. 
I think I have nearly concluded the remarks I 
desire to make upon the measure. I sl,ould 
perhaps mention that the late Government-the 
Government of Sir Hugh Nelson-sent the 
present chief of the Hansard staff to the 
southern colonies some time ago to inquire into 
and report upon this matter, and the Government 
have a report from him, made, I believe, some 
titne last seqsion or the session before, in which 
Mr. Gilligan refers to the sy"tem in operation in 
the oth9r colonies. With regard to the saving 
that will be effected, I would like to impress 
upon hon. members again that the way in 
which the saving is effected is by shortening the 
duration of the trial, which is directly to the 
interest on all the litigants, to such an extent 
that it would no doubt pay the litigants in those 
cases to employ shorthand writers themselves, 
even if there were no provision made by which 
they could become officers of the court under the 
direction of the judge. I was mentioning that 
the examination would be in the hands of the 
Public Service Board, and applicants, when 
examined and passed, would be placed upon ,a 
register, the same as is kept now for the unclas~i­
fied division of the service, and from that hst 
they could be selected from time ~o time. The 
Chief Justice would license the shorthand 
writer, and he would then become an officer 
of the court ; but before he ·would be 
permitted to act as such he would be required 
to take an oath which is given in sec­
tion 3 ; and then there is also a penalty pro­
vided in section 8 for any case of wilfully 
tampering with evidence. There is also pro­
vision by which the shorthand writer's notes 
themselves may become prima jaaie evidence of 
the evidence that has been given. I think there 
is nothing more that is necessary for me to say 
now. One or two verbal amendments will be 
necessary to bring the Bill into strict line with 
the Evidence Bill which passed through com­
mittee the night before last. Those necessary 
amendments I have made a note of, and I pro­
pose to have them circulated as soon as the Bill 
has been read a second time. I beg to move 
that the Bill be now read a second time. 

After a further brief adjournment on account 
of the storm, 

The HOME SECRETARY said: !think the 
principle involved in this Bill is one which will 
commend itself not only to hon. members but to 
the public generally, for the reasons set forth by 
the hon. member who has introduced it. It is a 
measure which I have myself thought for a good 
many years might be introduced with a very 
great deal of convenience to the public, more 
especially that portion of the public which finds 
itself involved in litigation from time to time, 
both as a way of shortening the hearing of 
cases and also possibly as a means of obtain­
ing greater accuracy. I say this with bated 
breath-with all due deference to the judges 
who take the notes of cases. I remember on 
one occasion a friend of mine who was at the 
bar, and who had lately been ad!n!tted_, was 
going somewhat too fast for the presidmg Judge. 
The judge laid down his pen and said : " Mr. 
--, I write two hands; one I can read, and 
the other I cannot read. If you go on at this 

rate I shall have to write the one I cannot read." 
I need hardly say that the counsel d7layed his 
proceedings somewhat, and was not m such a 
hurry to get on with the case. I do not know, 
of ~ourse, whether tha.t resulted i;!f the cas~ 
lastmg more tha.n one day and a refre~her 
being necessitated, but at all ev~n~& the actwn of 
counsel showed that he was diSmterested, and 
wished to get through the case as fast as 
possible. The hon. mel!lber has. said. th~t 
this principle has ?e~n il;l f.orce m Vwtol'la 
for some time, and 1t iS Withm my kn~wledge 
that thnugh it is not in general use l_l1 that 
colony it has been found on m:,ny occas10ns to 
be of very considerable va.lu~. In cases, for 
in•tance such as those described by the hon. 
member; and which run into more than three 
days, it is of great value. A recen~ murder 
case was tried in Victoria, and was disposed of 
in one and a-half days, through the court avail­
ing itself of this Act, whereas, under the old 
system, four days at least would ~1a ve be~n 
occupied, as there were over e1ghty Wl.t­
nesses to be examined. Hon. members ,will 
see from that bald fact that there is a 
great deal to be said for a measure of this kind. 
But it cannot be denied that there are many 
difficulties in the way-difficulties which obtain 
to a greater extent in this colony than in Victoria, 
which is, so to speak, a self-cel!tred c:olony. 
Melbourne being almost geographwally 111 the 
centre of the colnny, probably a very much 
larger proportion of the .cases tried in that c.olOJ?-Y 
-at any rate in the higher courts-are tried 111 
Melbourne than would be tried in Brisbane. We 
have here no less than three centres-Brisbane, 
Rockhampton, and Townsville-in which the 
Supreme Court has headquarte;·s. I am dol!b.tful 
as to the advisability of adoptmg the prGViSlOns 
of this Bill in their entirety, because there 
is a great deal of deb~teable matter in 
connection with the details. In the first 
place, I think the>•e shorthand writers should 
be to all intents and purposes officers of the 
Supreme Court and I also think it would be 
desirable that their competency should be cer­
tified to by someone having a thorough know­
ledge of his profession. The only. shorthand 
writer I know of m Queensland who IS known to 
the law is the Principal Shorthand Writer, in 
the employment of this Parliarr:ent, and Ice;· 
tainly think it would be desirable that Ins 
imprimatur so to speak, should be placed upon 
anyone employed to do this very important 
work. No one can doubt the enormous import­
ance to a litigant of having this work thoroughly 
well done if it is to be done at all. I have had 
some exp~rience of the old Elections and Quali­
fications Committee which, as hon. members 
will remember was the tribunal which heard 
and determined all questions relating to the 
validity of elections for this Hou.se. The: 
evidence was reported by the parhamen~a:y 
shorthand writers, and 1 have a very ViVid 
recollection of the facilities afforded to members 
of that committee, and the immense expedition 
resulting therefrom, in dealing with cases that 
came before them. As a rule the COII,lmittee 
would sit for at least as many hours durmg the 
day as are occupied by the Suprem~ Court, .and 
the next morning the whole of the eviden?e given 
on the previous day was in our hands 111 type, 
and in a very convenient form for reference. 
That could only have been done by ~he eii,lploy­
ment of a number of shorthand writers 111 the 
same way in which the reporting of debates in 
this Chamber is carried on-by relays-and that 
I think is the only possible way in which evi­
dence in the Supreme or other courts could be 
reported. 

Mr. MoRGAN : Expert typists would dispense 
with tnany shorthand writers. 
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The HOME SECRETARY: Possibly ; but 
in those days typewriting was not in such general 
use as it is now, and possibly fewer hands would 
be necessary than then to do the same amount of 
work. There would also be great difficulty in 
bringing this system into play under the Bill as 
it stands. It is provided in dause 6 that any 
judge, without application, may, and the judge, 
or chairman, or justices of any court may, upon 
application of any party, and shall, upon the 
application of all the parties to the cause, cause 
the evidence in any matter to be reported in 
shorthand, provided that a shorthand writer 
be then available for the purpose. But there 
is no time mentioned before the hearing 
within which notice must be given. If, for 
instance, on the assembling of the circuit court 
at Roma, the parties to a cause applied for 
the evidence to be taken in shorthand it would 
involve the necessity of postponing the trial 
until a shorthand writer could reach Roma, and 
therefore it must be palpable to everybody that 
there must be delay unless notice is given a cer­
tain time antecedent to the hearing. Of cour.e 
that is a difficulty which can easily be uvercome, 
because anybody who has a considerable case 
pending before a court would be able to make up 
his mind a week or ten days before as to whether 
he desired to have the evidence taken in that 
way or not. It would be simple enough 
perhaps in Brisbane, Rockhampton, and Towns­
"ville, because shorthand writers would always be 
on the spot, but it wonld not be so easy in 
the country districts, more especially when they 
remembered that evidence in cases heard before 
justices might be reported in this way. If parties 
to a case heard at Boulia, for instance, desired to 
have evidence taken in this way there would be 
the inconvenience of sending shorthand writers all 
that enormous distance, and a great expense to 
the parties. In fact the case would be finished 
long before they could arrive there. These are 
difficulties which I have long foreseen in connec­
tion with this measure, although in some modi­
fied form it might be practicable, possibly by 
limiting its operation to certain places. But the 
better way to deal with the whole matter would 
be to leave it-to begin with-in the hands of 
the judges, giving them power to make rules of 
of court which they might consider sufficient. 
Some judges are possibly a little conservative in 
their method of conducting trials, but on the 
whole I think it will be admitted that they have 
the interests of the public and litigants at 
heart, and would-if so authorised by statute 
-frame such rules of court as would give 
the greatest possible relief and assistance to 
litigants who might desire to avail themselves of 
the provisions of the statute. There is one very 
important provision in this Bill to which I cer­
tainly do take exception. It is the power given 
to a witness to sign the shorthand notes of his 
evidence. I think it is not a desirable thing that 
a witness should be asked to sign anything he 
cannot read himself. Unless he could certify as 
to his ability to read someone else"s shorthand 
notes, he not to be allowed to sign them. It is 
true that at present illiterate persons have to 
sign depositions and put their mark to them, 
but those depositions are carefully read over to 
them first. 

Mr. JENKINSON: It is option'1l under this Bill. 
The HO~IE SECRETARY: It is, but I 

doubt whether a man should even ha1·e the 
option of signing shorthand notes. I used to be 
a shorthand writer at one time, though I never 
attained any great proficiency in it, although I 
got a certifico,te. Unfortunately for myself I 
dropped out of the practice of it many years ago, 
and I know very little about it at all now except 
in an elementary way. Still, it will generally be 
received as a fact that a shorthand writer may 
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make a mistake in taking evidence-that is to 
say that his shorthand note may be erroneous as to 
some phrase or expression, which on going 
over the notes will be so plain that he will be 
able to correct the error in transcription. 
It might easily happen therefore that a short­
hand note signed would be incorrect, while if the 
witness signed the transcription he would find 
that his evidence was perfectly correctly reported. 
I thmk the hon. member should be satisfied this 
session with getting the Bill threugh its second 
reading-affirming generally the principle that 
this innovation is desirable. It is one which I 
hare for many years thought should be adopted, 
and I am very glad to see that there is a prospect 
of its taking tangible practical form. I shall 
certainly not oppose the second reading, but I 
think there is very little chance of the Bill 
getting further this se•sion. I think the hon. 
member will see that having regard to the fact 
that Queensland for purposes of this sort is 
really three colonies and not one as in Victoria, 
a great deal has to be considered in matters of 
detail before a Bill of this sort can receiva the 
sanction of both Houses of Parliament. 

Mr. J<'INNEY: I am very glad this Bill has 
been brought forward; in fact, I am surprised 
that a Bill of the kind was not introduced before 
this. We have the nucleus of a good staff of 
shorthand writers alr~ady in Brisbane, and if a 
Bill of this sort is passed it will give them an 
opportunity of passing proper examinations, 
which will enable them to get the business 
which properly belongd to this colony, instead of 
bringing shorthand writers from Melbourne up 
to Brisbane to do the work of arbitration cases. 
That shows that such a Bill is necessary, and I 
think there will be no trouble in making it a good 
one. If there are any clauses in it that are not 
considered workable, in committee there will be 
no insuperable difficulty in making it into a Bill 
that will carry out the purpose intended. I have 
much pl~asnre in supporting the Bill. 

Mr . .MORGAN: In a matter of this kind I 
think we ought rather to have regard to the 
interests of litigants than of the shorthand 
writers. That is the spirit in w hi eh I propose 
to regard this Bill. Having in view the 
interests of litigants, I trust this Bill will 
pass this session. The Home Secretary has 
given the Bill a friendly reception, and 
attaching due weight to what he has said in his 
capacity as a Minister, and remembering also 
that the hon. gentleman is a lawyer, we may say 
that his objections to the Bill are not fatal. 
Many of them can be overcome, and some 
of them are imaginary. The distinction he 
drew between the condition of things existing in 
Queensland and Victoria is more imaginary than 
real. He pointed out that the legal business in 
which shorthand writers are employed in Victoria 
is centred m Melbourne, and the obtaining of 
competent shorthand writers there is therefore 
very easy. He said we have three towns in this 
colony-Brisbane, Rockh~>mpton, and Towns 
ville-in which the Supreme Court has head 
quarters. There will be no difficulty in obtain­
ing competent shorthand writers in Brisbane, 
and I am equally sure there will be no difficulty 
in obtaining competent shorthand writers in 
Rockhampton and Townsville. 

Mr. MAUGHAN: Or in the country districts. 
Mr. MORUAN: Or in the country towns. 
The HmiE SECRETARY: Oh, yes, there would. 

It is technical work requiring practice. 
Mr. MORGAN: I should think tha,t report­

ing in courts would be very much easier to the 
average stenographer than the reporting in this 
Chamber. 

The HOME SECRETARY : They would require 
to have an elementary knowledge of law and the 
practice of courts, at all events. 
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Mr. MORGAN: I hope there will be no 
attempt to make the stenographers employed 
under thi.s Bill pass an examination in law, 
because if that is attempted the object of the 
Bill will he largely defeated. I believe com­
petent stenographers can be obtained in Rock­
hampton as well as in Brisbane, where ther~ is 
always a body through the Hansard staff bemg 
centred here. Of my own knowledge I can say 
that there is in Rockhampton one of the most 
competent shorthand writers in the colony, and 
there will be no difficulty there in obtain­
ing the services of skilled shorth<tnd writers. 
As to the other contention of the hon. gentle­
man, that if litigants were allowed to determine 
whether the depositions should bP. taken down 
by shorthand writers or not, it would involve 
the necessity of bringing certificated shorthand 
writers from the capital at considerable expense, 
I take it for granted that this is a matter that 
may safely be left to litigants themselves, 
because they are not, going to insist upon a 
course of action which would involve them in 
unnecessary outlay. I have said that this Bill is 
defensible in the interests of people who have to 
go to law, a.nd I sincerely hope the hon. gentle­
man who has charge of it will succeed in getting 
it placed on the statute-book before the proro­
gation of Parliament. 

Mr. SMITH: At the first blush I imagined 
that this Bill would possibly add to the expense 
of litigation, but on reconsideration I can see that 
io would have the opposite effect, because it would 
possibly shorten trials by one-half, and we know 
that the expense of a trial de[Jends upon whether 
it is long or short. As the Home Secretary haa 
pointed out, there is probably a little more diffi­
culty in applying a Bill of this kind in this 
colony, where we have three Supreme Court 
centres, than in Victorin, where all the principal 
trials are held in Melbourne ; but I think the 
Bill, if passed, can be made to apply to the thr<'e 
centres of the Supreme Court in this colony. As 
the hon. membPr for \V arwick said, there are 
shorthand writers in each of the three centres 
quite capable of doing the work required, but 
there will be a difficulty if they are required to 
pass an examination in Jaw, as suggested by the 
Home Secretary. 

The HOlllE SECRE1'ARY : I did not suggest any­
thing of the sort. 

"Mr. SMITH : I think the hon. gentleman said 
they would require to have some knowledge of 
legal phraseology. Of course that would not be 
insuperable, and no doubt there are some who 
are capable of undertaking the W•>rk at present. 
on· the whole I think this Bill would be a boon to 
tho'e who have trials in the Supreme Court. It 
would make the law more come-at-able to those 
who have not the wherewithal to prolong the 
agony, and I shall certainly give the measure my 
support. 

Mr. DRAKE, in reply : I am rather sorry 
that the Home Secretary is of opinion that it is 
undesirable that the Bill should be carried 
fmther than the second reading this session. I 
hope that is not the opinion of the Government 
as a whole, because I am aware that at this 
sta;;e of the session it will b'' impo,sible for the 
Bill to pass unlPss the Government make some 
concession in the matter of time. If it is a good 
measure-and it seems to be the general feeling 
of the House that it is-I think it is desirable 
that it should be passed this session. I am 
perfectly prepared to h;,nd it over to the 
Government if they will take charge of it, and 
then the hon. gentleman can make such amend­
ments as will remove any objection he may 
entertain at present. 

The Hol\JE SECRETARY: We have on our 
hands already as much as we can manage. 

Mr. DRAKE: If the hon. gentleman will 
maintain the main principle-that the shorthand 
writers employed in the court shall be examined 
and licensed-I should be perfectly prepared to 
move any amendment to remove any objection 
that he has to the Bill in its present form. The 
hon. gentleman referred to the possible examiners, 
and mentioned the chief of the Hnnsa1·d staff. I 
have no doubt that gentleman would make a 
very competent examiner; but the 1st clause pro­
vides that the Governor in Council may appoint 
persons to be examiners, and though there are at 
present outside the Hansard staff gentlemen 
quite as fit to discharge the duty of examiners, 
I do not think it desirable at present to mention 
names. I trust the hon. gentleman will reconsider 
the statement he has made, because I propose to 
move the committal of the Bill for to-morrow. 
There is no use in moving the committal for any 
particular day on which there is private members' 
business, because it is impossible to know how 
long the session is going to last. 

Question put and passed; and committal of the 
Bill made an order for to-morrow. 

TOWNSVILLE MUNICIPAL LOAN ACT 
REPEAL BILL. 

MESSAGE FROM THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. 
The SPEAKER announced the receipt of a 

me;., age from the Council intimating that they 
had agreed to this Bill without amendment. 

BISHOPSBOURKE ESTATE AND SEE 
ENDOWMENT TRUSTS BILL. 

COMMITTEE. 
Clause 1 put and passed. 
On clause 2-" Power to apply r,ee endowment 

fund to improvement of BishopsbourneEstate." 
Mr. ARMSTRONG: As intimated on the 

second reading, he asked the Committee to pause 
before accepting the principle contained in this 
clause to which he was strongly opposed. \Vhat 
was a~ked for was that a trust which had been 
entered into in all good faith for the benefit of 
the church should be departed from. Such a 
course bad never been adopted in Qneensland 
before. He might be told that it had been 
departed from in the case of private trusts, 
and in connection with the Bundaberg and · 
Warwick racecourses, but that was no argument 
why they should depart from_ the terms ?f 
a private trust. The lands mcorporated m 
the trust were given over for the benefit of 
the Church of England, and the administration 
of the trust had been so bad that it would be 
very unwise to allow complete control to be 
gained by the trustees of the land to do what 
they liked with it. When, in bygone times, it 
was sought to set aside a trust, authority was 
obtained from the Supren,e Court, and it would 
have oeen wiser if that course had 15een adopted 
in the vresent instance. He objected strongly to 
the powers asked for in subsections 3 and 4 of the 
clause, and he therefore moved that those sub­
sections be omitted. 

Mr. GROOM: Owing to the limited time at 
the disposal of private members htl did not wish 
to enter into a long discussion on the Bill, the 
principle of which had been affirmed on the 
secolld reading. He repeated what he said on 
the second reading, that the beneficiaries under 
the two trusts knew perfectly well what their 
interests were, and what would advance them 
most. The Bill did not affect the Church <>f 
England one iota except so far as protecting a 
valuable property and preserving it fro:n decay. 
The Bishop was willing to have his salary 
diminished in order to carry out the repairs to 
the trust estate of Bishopsbourne; the Synod, 
consisting of eighty-three members, had unani­
mously agreed to the Bill; it had the endorse­
ment of the Diocesan C<'uncil ; and, further, 



Bislwpsbourne, Eta., Bill. [8 DECEMBER.] Bislwpsbourne, Eta., Bill. 1427 

the select committee appointed to report on the 
Bill had favoured it by a majority of four to one. 
Under all those circumstances, and not wishing 
to occupy more of private members' time than 
was absolutely necessary in discussing the 
matter, he thought hon. members would be 
perfectly justified in accepting the Bill. 
They might very well leave those connected 
with the church to manage their own affairs, as 
they had done hitherto, and he was not aware 
that any great mistakes had been made by 
Parliament in its legislation regarding trusts. 
There were many cases in which Parliament had 
interfered when testators had made wills which 
the executors could not possibly carry out, and 
they had also passed an Act allowing the Church 
of l<Jngland in Leichhardt street to sell certain 
land. This Bill had met with the general 
approval of the church. He had heard of only 
two clergymen who were opposed to it, and 
although they were both present at the meeting 
of the council, neither raised his voice against 
it. From his own knowledge, he could say that 
it was the wish of the church that the Bill 
should pass. 

The HOME SECRETARY: The hon. mem­
ber had stated that the passing of this Bill 
would have the effect of reducing the income of 
the present occupant of the office of bishop. If 
such were the case it would be through the 
operation of the subsections which the hon. 
member for Lockyer propooed to omit, which 
allowed the car>ital moneys to be expended on 
maintenance. He thought the same re.ult would 
be arrived at if the subclauses were omitted, and 
the present bishop devoted to this purpose a sum 
equal to what his income would be reduced by if 
the subsections were allowed to pass. Parlia·· 
ment had often seen fit to change the nature of 
trusts, but M a rule the ultimate destination of 
the fund had been held to be sacred, and it must 
be remembered that this fund did not only 
benefit the present bishop, but also his succes­
sors. He would ask the hon. member for 
Toowoomba whether the omission of these sub­
sections would cause the Bill to fail for the 
purpose for which it was introduced. 

Mr. GROOM: It would certainly cause the 
Bill to fail in its object; therefore if the Com­
mittee rejected the subsections he would feel it 
his duty to withdraw the measure. This was the 
position : The first bishop set aside £500, the 
interest upon which was to be devoted to repairs 
to Bishopsbourne, but owing to the depreciatron 
in the value of property, that income had entirely 
disappeared, and they were left without any 
fund whatever for this purpose. In the early 
part of this year it was discovered that the place 
was almost falling down through the ravages of 
white ants. Two architects were employed to 
inspect it, and the result of the inspection was 
that the council had to spend .£279 in repairs. 
They would see that tbe very object of the Bill 
was contained in subclause 4, which enabled 
them to provide a fund out of which the 
cost of repairs could be defrayed. The original 
endowment fund amounted to over .£13,000 
but owing to the depreciation of the value of the 
property it now amounted to only about £6,000. 
The actual income received amounted to only 
£450 a year, and if the bishop was called upon 
to keep the estate in repair out of that, it 
would leave but a very small sum indeed. They 
were collecting funds in every possible direction 
to increase the see endowment fund to what it 
was originally. It must be remembered th:1t 
Bishopsbourne was the property of the dioces<>, 
and every man, woman, and child iu the diocese 
had a right to see that it was kept in proper 
repair, not only for the present occupant of the 
see, but for whoever might come after him. 

Mr. CRoss: But not by the diversion of a 
trust for some other purpose. 

Mr. GROOM: It was not for some other pur­
pose, but simply for the purpose of keeping the 
see endowment buildings in proper rejJair. If 
the amendment was carried he would have no 
alternative but to withdraw the Bill. 

Mr. AR:'v1STRONG agreed with the hon. 
member that the k•2eping of the estate in repair 
was the duty of every man, woman, and child in 
the diocese, and it was not their duty as a 
Legislative Assembly t" permit the sale of 
the capital of the trust for the purpose. 
Surely the members of the Church of England 
were sufficiently wealthy and charitable to 
sr'3 that the building in which the head of 
their church Jived was kept in repair and 
properly looked after. The hon. member's 
argnment had not remove :I his objections. The 
hon. member told them that the Bill had been 
drafted in accordance with the instructions of 
the present bishop, and that the bishop was 
entirely in accord with it. He could easily 
understand that, but they had to look to future 
occupant" of the see, and if expenditure was 
allowed to any extent, as it might be under the 
Bill, there woulrl be none of the capital of the 
trust left when a fresh occupant came into the 
see. He agr<>~d wit:, the Home Secretary that 
if the present occupant of the see approved of 
the Bill he might just as well do gratuitously 
now what was proposed as come down to that 
House and a~k the powers proposed in the Bill. 

Mr. CROSS: The hon. member said that the 
Bill did not propose to divert the trust from the 
purpose for which it was granted, but he saw by 
Appendix B to the ;ele.ct committee's report 
that the trust was confined to "the interest and 
prorluce of the capital sum," and the Bill would 
enable the whole principal sum to be expended. 
The hon. member said that the members of the 
Church of England gave their consent to the 
Bill, that it was their own business, and they 
should be allowed to mind it; but he must 
recognise that that was a specious argument, 
and that when Parliament was asked to give 
certain powers it was their obligation to confer 
such power.< in conformity with the trust, 
Under the Bill the whole capital stun might be 
frittered away in the most extravagant expendi­
ture upon Bishopsbourne. The person who had 
passed over to the great majority specifically 
bid down a certain thing ; the hon. member pro­
posed that the House should take certain action 
with rNll•ect to the carrying out of the trust, and 
they ha.l to consider whether what the hon, 
member proposed was the right thing to do. He 
did not think it was, as it would leo,d to a diver­
sion of the trust. 

Mr. L'EAHY: 'rhis was a qnestion that was 
somewhat of a delicate nature, but as it was 
before the Committee he would like to say a word 
or two. Being a church matter, he was of 
opinion that, as the clergymen and others who 
managed the affairs of the church were almost 
unanimous in the matter, Parliament should 
assist them by granting what they desired. As 
to the question of the trusts, be did not think 
there was anything very "acred in the matter. 
It was true that they shonlrl respect the opinions 
of those who had died and disposed of their 
property in 9, certain manner, but as men of 
common sense they knew very well that very 
often if the person who left property under 
certain conditions could view it under existing 
circumstances he would be quite willing to alter 
the conditions so a' to suit those altered circum­
stances. He would give the bon. gentleman in 
charge of tbe Bill his support. 

The HOME SECRETARY: Hecouldunder 
stand the argument of the hon, gentleman in 
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charge of the Bill when he said that the expendi­
ture of this money for the maintenance and im­
provement of Bishopsbourne would not reduce 
the income of the prevent incumbent of the see 
to the full extent of the capital amount so 
expended. Of course it would only be to the 
extent of the interest-bearing capacity of that 
capital, which would probably be of a very trifling 
nature compared with the whole of his income. 
He had merely risen for the purpose of eliciting 
information. He agreed with the hon. mem­
ber for Bulloo that this was a matter of which 
those more immediately concerned were pro­
bably the best judges, and if they were will­
ing, as the custodians of the revenues and pro­
perty of tlw church, that the Bill should pass, 
this Cnmmittee could not go very far wrong 
in acceding to the deoires of what might be 
called "the church parliament," as represented 
by the bishop and the Synod. Though he had 
said that, as far as he knew, Parliament had 
never altered the ultimate destination of a trust, 
it was perhaps scarcely applicable in this case, 
because the ultimate destination of the trust was 
not altered. It was only technically so. ·what­
ever money was spent on Bishopsbourne might 
be said to improve the property to exactly that 
extent, whether in the way of maintenance or 
additions to the buildings. With regard to the 
clause, he thought the Committee might feel 
itself on safe ground in giving effect to the 
wishes of the representative body governing the 
church. 

Mr. GROOM: He had been asked whether 
Parliament had ever passed a Bill for the diver­
sion of trusts, and he conld quote two instances 
in connection with the Church of England. 
The first was in the Act dealing with the Leich­
hardt-street property, which was a distinct diver­
sion of the trust; and the second was in connec­
tion with certain lands left by the late John 
Deuchar, of Warwick, for the benefit of the 
church there. Owing to the peculiar circum­
stances which had arisen since the trust was 
originally granted, leave was asked to sell the 
lands and devote the interest of the proceeds to 
the general good of the parish. That was exactly 
what the church was doing in this case. They 
asked power to take a portion of the money from 
one trust and apply it to the benefit of the other 
trust, and so keep up the value of a very large 
estate held in trust in the same way as the capital 
fund. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC IN­
STRUCTION: There might be something in 
the argument of the hon. member with regard to 
the desirability of acceding to the wish of the 
majority, but the doctrine-however convenient 
-mig-ht be attended by some disadvantagee. 
He shonld say it would tend to dry up any 
spring of private benevolence that was likely to 
flow, because it was evident that, according to 
the doctrine sanctioned by the hon. member for 
Toowoomba, there was no guarantee that any 
trust property would be devoted to the purpo.<e 
for which the testator willed it. According to 
the doctrine of the hon. member, it was only 
necessary to get a meeting, and instead of 
laying up treasure for the future-he was not 
referring to the next world-decide to swamp 
the whole lot at present, because it was more 
convenient than sending the hat round. They 
might entirely ignore the wishes of the tes­
tator, who was dead, and proceed to apply 
the money given under specific conditions to any· 
thing which they in their wisdom thought best. 
It seemed to him that the person who left the 
money took a wise view of the possible risks 
which might be run, and provided for the 
maintenance of the buildings. He did not make 
the bishop his beneficiary, as the hon. member 
said. The present bishop had no right what-

ever to the corpus. The next bishop could call 
upon him, either in this world or the next, to 
render an account of his trust, and all he would 
be able to say was that he had squandered it, 
and ask for the benefit of the Offenders Proba­
tion Act. The testator never intended the 
capital to go out of the jurisdiction of the 
church. The hon. member said he had every 
confidence in those who had managed the truPt 
hitherto. At all events they had managed to 
dissipate nearly the whole of one trust-namely, 
the capital of £500, and now asked-in 
consideration of their superior management­
to be granted enlarged powers. The proposal 
of the trustees was that they should be 
allowed to dissipate that which was intended for 
all generations. It was just becauoe there hap­
pened to be two bequests that the hon. member 
wanted to do what he called "unify" them. He 
did not call it unification, because one was dissi­
pated. How could they unify that which was 
dissipated? It seemed to him that they were on 
most doubtful ground altogether. Whatever 
they might do in that case, and whatever con­
venience it might serve, he very much questioned 
whether they would be doing the church any 
good by breaking down all the conditions by 
which a testator endeavoured to safegnard a 
trust. Such a course was much more likely to 
deter people from leaving money to the church, 
feeling sure that, while there was some risk 
of the money being entirely lost, there was 
no possible chance of the testator's wishes 
being regarded. He once knew of a very ex­
ceptional and excellent mau, the Rev. Mr. 
Muller, of Bristol, to whom some benevolent 
person wished to leave £10,000, which was 
to be invested so as to secure him a perma­
nent income whatever happened. But the rev. 
gentleman said he always believed in the efficacy 
or prayer; that whatever the Creator was going 
to give him He would give, and if he were to 
accept the £10,000 on condition that he should 
invest it in Imperial consols he would be doubt­
ing the benevolent disposition of his Heavenly 
Fat.her. The hon. member for Toowoomba, repre­
senting the Synod, was in somewhat the same 
position. A certain sum of money had been put 
away by a benevolent person for the future 
use of the Church of England. If the 
hon. member had used the same argument 
as the Rev. Mr. Muller he might possibly have 
sympathised with him, but the hon. member 
admitted that it was necessary to lay up treasure, 
and the only possible excuse he had for making 
his proposal was that the people who were 
custodians of a certain trust had shown th<tt 
they were anything but careful custodians and 
he wanted to give them full power to do what 
they wished with the balance of the trust which 
they had not lost. His opinion was that the 
case was not a very good one, but the hon. mem­
ber's reasons for passing the Bill certainly pre­
disposed him against it. 

Mr. STORY: If there was any body of men 
who should regard the wishes of the dead it was 
churchmen. In this case certain provisions had 
been made for the maintenance of a certain 
property by investing a sum of money and using 
the income for that purpose, and the greater 
portion of that money had disappeared. The 
business way to look at the matter was that, 
although owing to depre~1<ed times the trusts 
had decreased in value, still the depression 
would pass away, and in ten or twenty years 
the estate might be a most valuable one. 
If the testator could do so, he would probably 
tell them to tide over their difficulties as best 
they could for a few years withuut touching the 
property, which would eventually bring in all 
the money required. The same argument would 
apply in every case, and every prudent man 
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would simply cut down his expenses in the hope 
that things would improve. He should support 
the amendment. 

Question-That the words proposed to be 
omitted stand part of the clause-put ; and the 
Committee divided :-

AYEs, 7. 
M.e'l-srs. Dickson, Foxtou, Philp, I\1urray, Finney, Kerr, 

1\faughan, Turley, Callau, Mc11aster, Sim, Daniels, King, 
Browne, Leahy, Groom, Drake, Boles, Newell, Fogarty, 
Stumm, Dibley, Hardacre, }forgan, Stewart, Dunsford, 
and Hamilton. 

NoEs, 10. 
Messrs. Cross, Smith, Dalrymple, ·Tooth, Step hens, 

Lord, Bartholomew, Armstrong, Hood, and Story. 
Resolved in the affirmative. 
Clause put and passed. 
Clause 3 put and passed. 
The preamble was passed with a verbal amend­

ment. 
The House resumed ; the CHAIRMAN reported 

the Bill with an amendment, and the third 
reading was made an Order of the Day for 
Tuesday next. 

CAIRNS GAS COMPANY, LIMITED, 
BILL. 

COMMITTEE. 
Clauses 1 to 12, inclusive, put and passed. 
On clause 13-" Power to contract for lighting 

streets and houses"-
Mr. DUNSFORD noticed that under that 

clause the company need not lower the price of 
gas until they made a profit of 10 per cent. He 
was under the impression that that was too 
high. 

The TREASURER : He did not object to the 
profit being fixed at 10 per cent., but they would 
have to be careful that the company did not water 
their stock as the Charters Towers company had 
done. They had a capital of £15,000 on which 
they were a.llowed to make a profit of 10 per cent., 
but they distributed £5,000 in shares to their 
shareholders, and under their Bill they could still 
get 10 per cent. on the £20,000. There would be 
nothing to prevent that under the present Bill. 

Mr. DRAKE: It is very hard to prevent it. 
The TREASURER: It could be done. 
Mr. DuNSFORD: We could limit the profit to 

the present capital. 

The TREASURER : Supposing they accumu­
lated £3,000 or £4,000 profit they could give 
their shareholders paid-up shares as was done by 
the Charters Towers company. 

Mr. DRAKE: Not since their Bill became 
law? 

The TREASURER: No; before that. Still 
under this Bill there was nothing to hinder that 
company from distributing paid-up shares to 
their shareholders and still claiming to get 
10 per cent. on the new capital. Another thing 
was that the corporation could not buy out that 
company under fourteen years; in the case 
of the Charters Towers Act the time was seven 
years. At present there' was an application at 
the Treasury from the Maryborough Municipal 
Council, who wished to buy out the gas company 
there. They wanted £30,000, and the Mary­
borough co,mcil was coming to the Treasury for 
the money. They ought to be careful with the 
Bill, because the company was a Melbourne com­
pany and not a Cairns company at all. He would 
not mind if it was a local company. 

Mr. DRAKE : It is the same company as at 
barters Towers. 
The TREASURER : Yes ; but they had 

local shareholders there, and there were no local 
shareholders at Cairns. It was the business of this 
company to form gasworks. They manufactured 
the plants, and erected them at different places. 
He did not say they did not do their work well-

he believed they did-but he thought they should 
not get more than 10 per cent. upon the first 
capital. 

.Mr. CROSS was very glad the Tre:osurer had 
given the Committee that information. He was 
not aware of it, and he could hardly believe the 
hon. member for Enoggera had been aware of it, 
and was assisting a monopolistic foreign company 
to bleed the Cairns municipality to any extent 
they liked. He must express his regret that the 
municipality of Cairns had not been more alive 
to their interests, and h,, thought that this Com­
mittee would be very remiss in their duty if they 
allowed such a provision to pass. It was not yet 
6 o'clock, and as he did not think it was likely 
that any other private member's business could 
be disposed of before then, he would spend what 
time was left in tesisting what he considered to be 
a gross monopoly. The Charters Towers Bill gave 
a monopoly for seven years, but this Bill pro­
posed to give the Cairns company a monopoly 
for fourteen years, which was a very serious 
thing. As the Treasurer had pointed out, they 
mig-ht water their stock, and in order to meet 
that he moved the insertion of the word 
"orig-inal" before the word" paid-up," in line 20, 
so that the percentage allowed would be on the 
original paid-up capital of the company. 

The PREli!IER: Have you any idea what the 
original paid-up capital of the company was? 

Mr. CROSS: He believed it was £10,000. He 
desired to reduce the rate from 10 to 5 t'er cent., 
and in order to do that he asked leave to with­
draw the amendment he had just moved. 

Amendment, by leave, withdrawn. 
Mr. CROSS moved the omission of the wod 

"ten," on line 19, with the view of inserting the 
word "five." 

The TREASURER : They would not undertake 
the works on that. Ten per cent. was low 
enough. 

Mr. CROSS : There were plenty of people 
willing and anxious to lend money at 5 per cent. 
The Australian Mutual Provident Society would 
lend money at 6 per cent. 

The HOME SECRETARY : On what security? 
Mr. CROSS : On excPllent security. With a 

monopoly of fourteen years, he thought 5 per 
cent. w~<s enough for any company. 

The HOME SECRETARY: Will you take some 
shares? 

Mr. CROSS : If he had a few thousand to 
spare he would count himself extremely lucky if 
he could get 5 per cent. for hi~ investment. He 
knew several places that were suffering from 
monopolies of this kind. For instance, there 
was the town of Bundaberg, where the charge 
for gas was so high that a largP number of the busi­
ness place> in the principal street were lit with 
kerosene. In the name of the prosperity of 
future Queensland he protested against such a 
monopoly as this. 

ELECTIONS ACTS AMENDMENT BILL. 
SECOND READING. 

The PREMIER : The Bill which I now intro­
duce to the House is a small measure, notwith­
standing that it amends the electoral law. If 1t 
were not a practically useful Bill I should _not 
care to introduce it at this stage of the sesswn. 
I do not think it can be fairly reg-arded as involv­
ing any great amount of controversy upon the 
theory or principles of the franchise, and I do 
not introduce it with the idea of discussing that 
phase of the subject. This is merely an attempt 
to improve the administration of our electoral 
laws. If we were, at this stage, to begin a dis­
cussion upon the principles of our electoral law, 
it would occupy much more time than we 
can at present devote to it. I therefore trust 
that hon. members will confine theiJ· remarks 
strictly to the Bill. During the many years I 
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have been connected with political life I have at 
times been amazed to think that the electoral 
system of this colony, which is the very basis of 
all our rights and prrvilege", should be conducted 
in what I may term a most perfunctory manner. 
The return of members of Parliament to this 
Assembly is one of the most cherished rights 
and privileges of the people, and I maintain that 
the machinery by which that is regulated should 
be framed with the greatest care, and adminis­
tered with a due recognition attaching to the 
responsibility of the work. I am sure hon. 
members will agree with me that the perform­
ance of the duties connected with the compila­
tion of the electoral rolls does not give general 
satisfaction, Continual complaints are made 
against the perfunctory manner in which 
the rolls are compiled, and having occupied 
the position of Home Secretary-the Minister 
charged with the administration of the electoral 
laws-I have not been at all satisfied with the 
manner in which business connected with the 
compilation and revision of the rolls has been 
carried out. I more than once brought the matter 
under the notice of the late Home Secretary, Sir 
Horace Tozer, who seemed to think that our pre­
sent system was not capable of improvement. 
Such, however, is not my opinion. I 'la not 
wish in any way to disparage the work of the 
clerks of petty session8 and electoral registrars, 
but I do not think that the work in the past has 
been undertaken with a sutlicientrecognition of its 
importance, nor has it been supervised in such a 
manner that the weaknesses may be ea~y of 
detection, and the various officers visited with 
instructions so that in future they may carry 
out their duties more satisfactorily. I wish it to 
be understood that I have no desire to censure 
these officers, but hitherto they have not been 
directly responsible in the sense that they should 
be, nor have the responsibilities of their impor­
tant duties been broug-ht sufficiently before them. 
I introduce this measure with the sole desire that 
the electoral rolls sh"Il be kept and maintained 
in an efficient condition. It is desirable that 
they should at all times be pure, and I do not 
introduce the measure with the desire to give 
any political party an advantage. It is only 
right, however, that the rolls Hhould be in an 
efficient condition, so that when they are needed 
for use at an election they should rea)ly represent 
the true opinion of those who are qualified to vote. 
I deprecate very much that when elections come 
on there should be anything like a struggle or 
desire to obtain a preponderating power of voters 
on the rolls. That is a ma·tter that should be 
left to an officer whose duty it should be to keep 
the rolls in an efficient condition, and prevent 
political parties, which will always exist, from 
gaining victories by a trick or stratagem. I 
think the duty of purging the rolls and keeping 
them in a thoroughly efficient position is of such 
vital importance that we should have a special 
officer to perform that duty, and therefore this 
Bill is introduced. It contains three fundamental 
principles. The first is that there shall be a 
principal electoral officer, whose duty it shall be 
to see that the electoral registrars in the different 
localities are visited from time to time, so as to 
ascertain whether they perform their duties 
properly-in fact, to initiate the formation of an 
electoral department, for that is what it will 
come to, under which the rolls will be under the 
supervision of an officer who will be responsible 
to the Parliament of the day. I have held this 
view for a considerable number of yeare. I gave 
expression to it when the late Premier was alive, 
and he cordially supported that view, and if he 
had been spared to us I have no doubt but that 
he would have recommended the adoption of this 
principle. This principal electoral registrar will 
have the control of the electoral system of the 

colony, and will see that the clerks of petty ses­
sions perform their duties properly, and relieve 
us nf the complaints which from time to time are 
made to Parliament in regard to irregularities 
connected with the lodging of applications and 
their rejection, and a variety of other matters in 
regard to which the Home Secretary has no 
direct right to interfere. And even if he did 
interfere, it would be suggested at once that he 
did so from some party motive. 

Mr. GROOM: You do not preclude them from 
sitting in judgment upon their own actions. 

Mr. GLASSEY: Yes. 
Mr. GROOM: No; two very gross cases have 

been exposed in the Press within the last month. 
The PREMIER: This Bill provides for that. 

My contention is that the electoral registrar 
shall be an officer of Parliament, and shall have 
control of the electoral system in his hands in 
order to see that the local registrars and clerks 
of petty sessions who, at present-although I 
concede that they do their duty according to 
their lights honestly and WPll-really consider 
that the duties appertaining to the electoral office 
are outside their legitimate functions. They 
have been appointed as clerks of petty sessiom, 
and look with very ill regard upon their work 
connected with the electoral system, which they 
consider as being sometbmg !ldditional ~or 
which they receive no remuneratiOn, and whiCh 
they consider as of secondary importance. I 
desire to impress upon hon. members that I 
consider the correctness of the electoral rolls 
as of primary importance, and in that light I 
commend to the House the appointment of 
this principal electoral registrar. Complaints, 
no doubt well·founded, are continually made to 
this House in regarn to the peculiar-not to say 
eocentric-manner in which some names are put 
on the rolls and others are rejected. I remember 
when Sir Horace Tozer was on these benches I 
complained that the names of a number of my 
constituents had disappeared from the rolls mo~t 
mysteriously, and I could get no redress. Ult1-
tnately it was found that tho clerk of petty 
sessions, who performed the duties of electoral 
registrar, had not .discharged his dutie~ as satis­
factorily as he might, and no doubt Ill such a 
large colony as this such things are not of 
infrequent occurrence. I have no doubt hon. 
members will, each and all, have, within their 
own knowledge, circumstances which show that 
there should be some improved machinery in 
connection with these matters. 'rhe second 
principle of the Bill is contained in the following 
clause:-

No person before or by whom any claim under this 
Act has been declared or attested, or who has caused 
or procured or who has been in anywise concern~d in 
the making, delivering, or sending of any such claim to 
or at n. court or to an electoral registrar, shall act as a 
member of the court when such claim is being heard 
or adjudicated upon, uncler a penalty of fifty pounds, 
to be recovered on summary conviction. 

Mr. GROOM: That wili not prevent an elec­
toral registrar who puts "disqualified "or" left" 
against a man's name sitting on the bench. 

The PREMIER: I do not contend that the 
Bill is pm·fec~, but I deprecate the opening up of 
a discugsion connected with the theory or the 
principles of franchise at the present time. 
That would open up such a large field for debate 
that there would not be the slightest chance of 
this Bill being passed this session, and I would 
only consider I was wasting time in going on 
with the Bill if hon. members persisted in that 
course. Any debate of that sort would result in 
the withdrawal of the Bill. The third principle 
of the Bill validates the appointment of certain 
returning officers who, being members of l<;>cal 
authorities and receiving fees for their serviCes 
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as returning officers, have-by a recently ex­
pressed opinion of the Crown Law Office-laid 
themselves open to a penalty of serving in an 
office of profit under the Crown. It never 
occurred to us before, and the fact has only 
come to light recently. In this colony pro­
minent citizens had often to fill dual positions. 
Men of intelligence and ability in many places 
are not remarkably numerous, and a gentle­
man who has been elected to the position of 
a member of a local authority through the 
respect and esteem felt for him by his fellow­
citizens, wiil in all probability be a very valuable 
and proper man to have as a returning officer. 
It would be a misfortune if such men were 
excluded from the position, or made amenable 
to a penalty for performing the duties of a 
returning officer. I need not take up the time 
of the House in dilating further upon the 
measure. I trust hon. members will view it 
in the light in which it is introduced-as a 
measure to improve the administration of the 
electoral system. It may be thought that I 
should have pressed it upon the consideration 
of the House at an earlier period of the ses­
sion, but by so doing I might have subjected 
myself to the suspicion that it was intended 
to interfere with the compilation of the elec­
toral rolls in view of the approaching general 
elections. The time at which I now introduce 
it must dispel from the minds of hon. mem­
bers any such idea. At the same time I think 
the Bill of such importance that we should not 
delay in passing it, whether at the time of a 
general election or otherwise. One of the pri­
mary duties of tbe State is to have the electoral 
rolls in such a state of purity and complete­
ness. It is most important that men who have 
the right to be on the rolls should know that 
they have an official who will see that their 
rights are fully recognised ; that they will not be 
subjected to delays and irregulftrit.ies, or be left 
to the judgment of subordinate State officials. 
All these things justify me in urging this 
measure upon thE\ House to secure an electoral 
system under which there will be no just cause 
for complaint by the people of the colony that 
the electoral rolls do not provide a complete and 
satisfactory channel for the expression of their 
opinion at any election that may take place. I 
beg to move the second reading of the Bill. 

Mr. GLASS~;y: The Premier says that the 
main feature of the Bill is the appointment of a 
general registrar to talm charge of the general 
registration of electors and the compilation of 
the electoral rolls throug-hout the colony. He 
also says that some suspicion might lurk in the 
minds of hon. members-and perhaps in the 
minds of the public-if the Bill had been intro­
duced earlier, that it was introduced with a view 
to controlling tbe compilation of the rolls in such 
a way as to influence the general elections in 
favour of the Government. I think that is not 
a good excuse. The hon. gentleman says it 
is much better to take tbe electoral system out 
of the hands of the Government and place it in 
the hands of some responsible person, and I think 
it would have been a much better plan to have 
introduced a Bill of this nature at an earlier 
period of the ~ession so that the control and 
compilation of the rolls, particularly at the 
annual court in November, could have been under 
the supervision of this responsible person. There 
is only one thing in this Bill which is any 
justification for its introduction at all-that is, 
the provision to relieve returning officers from 
being charged with having held an office of 
profit under the Crown on account of the small 
fee they receive for the performance of the duty. 
It would have been much better if the Premier 
had introduced a Bill a1 m ply to deal with that 
one question. There is no justification at this 

late period of the ~ession for introducing a Bill 
of this kind. I am by no means opposing the 
principle of the Bill. I think it is very important 
that we should take the registration system 
out of the hands of the political head of any 
department and place it in the hands of a 
thoroughly capable and respunsible officer charged 
with this very difficult and most important 
work. But seeing that we httve finished the 
annual rolls under which the general elections 
will be fought, there is no justification at all for 
the introduction of a Bill dealing with this 
m11tter now. The Premier says it is not nece<sary 
under this Bill to discuss the whole matter 
relating to the franchise. That may be granued, 
but I ask can any man-and I do not exclude 
the Premier, though many of us look upon him as 
very conservative-! ask can any man justify 
the present electoral system logically or fairly? 
I say they cttnnot. It would have been far 
better that a Bill should have been brought in to 
deal with the one matter to which I have referred 
until such time as we could have dealt in a 
comprehensive way with the whole electoral 
system. This is only more tinkering. Last 
year we had an amending Bill which in some 
respects was an improvement; now we have 
another little tinkering measure, and I say it 
would have been better to deal with the one 
questi<m, and let the other matters dealt with in 
this Bill stand over until a comprehensive 
measure could have been considered-! hope 
next session. 'l'he hon. member for Toowoomba 
interjected that this Bill did not meet the 
indefensible cases that occurred in connection 
with the registration courts at Cunnamulla and 
Mackay; but I think it does to some extent. 

Mr. GROOM : It does not meet those cases at 
all. 

Mr. GLASSEY: It may not meet the case so 
far as an electoral registrar himself is concerned, 
but it does meet the case so far as justices of 
the peace adjudicating upon claims they have 
themselves attested is concerned. There is another 
matter to which T direct the attention of the 
Premier, and one that deserves consideration at 
the hands not only of members on this side who 
have condemned most strongly the present elec­
toral system. That is with regard to the ques­
tion of attestation. Surely no one can justify 
the present system of attestation of olaims, 
particularly in tb& country districts, where the 
officers charged with this work are extremely 
scttrce and difficult to find. 

Mr: ARMSTRONG : vVe have schools every­
where. 

Mr. GLASSEY: There are hundreds and 
thousands of miles throughout this colony where 
State schools do not exist, or railway officials 
either. One of the most obnoxious and objection­
able features of the present system is the abomin­
able system known as attestation. We all know 
the reason why thj,<l attestation clame was passed. 
I strongly protested against it at the time, and 
mentioned the hardships that must aacrue, par­
ticularly in the sparsely populated districts of 
the colony. I do not object to the main principles 
of this Bill, but I will take the opportunity in 
committee of amending it in the direction of 
liberalising it with regard to attestation. 

The SPEAKER : Order! Tbe hon. gentle­
man cannot discuss that question now. There is 
nothing in the Bill providing for iiicreased 
facilities for attestation. 

Mr. GL~iSSEY: I hope to see the Bill 
amended in the direction I have mentioned-so 
that the attestation will be left to two electors to 
testify that the perHon who claims to have a 
vote is eligible, and of course the necessary 
penalties will have to be provided. Considering 
the penalty attaching to every person who 
attests a claim--
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The SPEAKER : Order I That has nothing 
whatever to do with the question before the 
House. 

Mr. GLASSEY: Of course I have no desire 
to go into the details, but merely to outline the 
direction in which I think we might reasonably 
amend the Bill. It is not my intention to dis­
cuss the whole question of the franchise, but I 
hope when the Bill reaches the committee stage 
it will be amended in the direction I have indi­
cated, and that it will be accepted by the 
Premier. 

Mr. STEW ART: We all agree with the 
sentiment that fell from the lips of the Premier 
when he declared it was his desire that every 
person in the colony entitled to be on the roll 
should have his name there. The only pity is 
that the hon. gentleman and those connectecl 
with him will not take the necessary steps to put 
that noble sentiment into practice. We also 
agree with the hon. gentleman that much im­
provement in the electoral law is necessary, but 
f~om my point of view this Bill is not an improve­
ment at all. In my opinion it is merely brought 
in for the purpose of giving somebody a billet,­
adding to the numerous army of Civil servants 
who have nothing to do but twiddle their 
thumbs from January till June and from June 
till January. The hon. gentleman told us that 
one principle of the measure was the appointment 
of a principal registrar, but he did not tell 
us what that officer W&S to do. He talked 
in a broad and large fashion of this official who 
was going to see that every man got his rights. 
Is this principal registrar going to be placed 
above the conrts of the colony? Is he to be per­
mitted to interfere wrth the decisions of the 
benches in regard to electoral claims ? If not 
the whole thing is a farce, and I do not suppose 
the hon. member has ever dreamed that this 
officer would be placed in such a position as that. 
Let us examine the duties 0f electoral registrars. 
The electoral registrar sits in his office, receives 
claims that are brought to him, marks the dates 
when they are received, arranges them .in alpha­
betical order, submits them to the court and 
publishes lists after the sitting of the court. 
\V e do not require an official of extraordinary 
ability to do these things. They could be done 
by a clerk at £150 a year in the largest towns in 
the colony. It is merely routine work. The 
real solid work of getting men's names on the 
roll is done by those who fill up the claims and 
send them in. The registrar is only the link 
between the elector who sends in his claim and 
the bench of justices who adjudicate on that 
claim. In my electorate, for instance, the elec­
toral registrar live; in Rockha.mpton. He is 
the clerk of petty sessions there; he submit' the 
names to the court ; they are either accepted or 
rejected; and I want to know where the princi­
pal registrar comes in. 

An HmmURABLE MEMBER : ,A_t the beginning 
of the month. 

Mr. STEW ART: He will come in on the first 
of the month for his salary, but he will also come 
in somewhere else if I am any judge of this Bill. 
We shall not only have this official, hut we sha.!l 
have a horde of other officials all over the colony, 
and this gentleman will merely be a travelling 
agent for the National "Ass." It is proposed 
under this Bill to give this official power to make 
or cause to be made such inquiries and investiga­
tions as he thinks neces;.,,ry for the effectual 
execution of his duties and the duties of 
electoral registrars. \Vhat does that mean? 
It simply means that the purging of the rolls is 
to be carried out in a much more effective 
manner than heretofore by Government officials 
with Government money. The National" Ass" 
finds it cannot raise sufficient money and it 
falls back, as usual, on the Treasury. This is 

the design which is concealed behind the Bill. 
I hope the hon. gentleman will tell us in reply­
ing exactly what this official is going to do. He 
says he is to supervise the corn piling of the rolls. 
\Ve do no~ want any such officer for that pur­
pose. We have the electoral registrars and 
returning officers in the different districts, and 
now we are to have this official behind the whole 
lot. I do not believe in the Home Secretary 
bringing influence to bear so that one party in 
the State should have advantage over another, 
yet I do not think the appointment of this 
official will do awav with that. The Under 
Home Secretary hitherto has superintended the 
electoral registrars, and if the Government can 
influence him they can also influence the prin­
cipal electoral registrar. 

The HoME SECRETARY: Do you say that in­
fluence is brought to bear? 

Mr. STEW ART: I do not say anything of 
the kind. 

The HoME SECRETARY : Then your whole argu­
ment falls to the ground. 

Mr. STEW ART: The Premier said that was 
not desirable, yet political influence might be 
brought to bear on the principal electoral regis­
trar just as easily as upon any one else. With 
regard to the other part of the Bill, providing 
that no person before whom a claim is attested 
may act as a member of a revising court, no 
doubt such a principle is ab,olutely fair in the 
abstract. But does the hon. gentleman not see 
what it will lead to? No inconvenience 
will be experienced in the large centres of 
population, but in the western country, where 
justices are "like angels' visits, few and 
far between," and where there are no 
railway stationmasters, or classified officers of the 
Civil' service, or Pchool teachers, a man may go 
to a justice and ask to have his claim attested. 
The justice will reply, "I will be sitting on the 
bench; you had better go to so-and-so." He goes 
to the other magistrate, who refers him to the 
first magistrate for the same reason, and then 
perhaps refers the claimant to another justice 100 
miles away. The only method by which the 
hon. gentleman can prove that he is in earnest is 
by abolishing this system of attestation by 
justices and substituting attestation by electors. 
·wmhedothat? If he does not, then we on this side 
will be justified in coming to the conclusion that 
this clause is deliberately inserted for the purpose of 
disfranchising a hrge number of men in the more 
sparsely populated portions of the colony. So 
far as the machinery for regist€ring names and 
formulating claims is concerned, I do not think 
anyone can have very much to say against it. 
The chief difficultv b encountered before the 
revising court, and the appointment of this 
principal electoral registrar will not help us in 
the slightest degree. I do not welcome the Bill 
at all. There is not a single clause in it which 
is an advance on the present law. In fact, one 
clause is rather a retrograde step, and the officer 
to be appointed will be really a travelling agent 
for the National" Ass." 

Mr. CRIBB : I think this Bill is a step in the 
right direction. \Ve not only require facilities 
to be given to get on the rolls, but also that the 
rolls should be kept as pure as possible. Tbe 
purity of the rolls is the chief protection to the 
bona fide voter. Therefore, I think that all 
persons who are interested in the welfare of the 
colony are interested in seeing that their votes 
are properly protected. I do not anticipate that 
thEre will be any further alterations in the elec­
toral law this year, but there are some that are 
required. The appointment of this principal 
electoral registrar will be an advantage in this 
respect--that from time to time he will be 
able to make certain recommendations to the 
Government which will eventuate in a more 
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perfect system of compiling the rolls of the colony. 
The hon. member for Rockhampton North has 
complained about claims being improperly 
rejected, but there is another side to that question, 
aud I shall give an illustration of what occurred 
at Ipswich. The electorate of which I have the 
honour to represent is separaLed from the adjoin­
ing electorate by a creek, and the members of a 
registered company, known as the Aberdare 
Company, work on both sides of that creek­
that is, they work in both the Ipswich and the 
Bundanba electorates. A number of those men 
living on the Ipswich side put in claims as 
leaseholders to be put on the Bun banba roll ; 
and others, living in Bundanba, put in claims 
as leaseholders to be put on the Ipswich roll. 
There can be no possible validity in those 
claims. If such claims are admitted, a share­
holder in a bank would have a perfect right to 
be put on the roll in every electorate in which 
the bank has a branch. I only mention this to 
show that a considerable amount of attention 
should be given to the revision of the rolls; 
therefore I shall be glad to see this measure 
become law, because I think it will lead eventu­
ally to the purifying of the rolls and making 
them much more perfect. 

Mr. DANIELS : Looking through this Bill, 
I have come to the conclusion that this electoral 
officer will be simply a buffer for the Govern­
ment. At present if there is any maladminis­
tration we can always blame the Home Secretary 
for it ; but if we pass this Bill, that hon. gentle­
man will merely say, "I have nr.thing to do with 
it; it is the electoral registrar," and we will not 
be able to get at him. This is simply a Bill to 
prevent the Home Secretary being battered and 
knocked about by this side. It is all very well 
for the Government to say this officer will be 
independent of Ministerial influence, but that 
has not been the case with any officer. The 
Ministry always hold the whip hand, even over 
the Chief Justice, as was exemplified some time 
ago in the case of the late Sir Charles 
Lilley. I should very much like to know from 
the Premier what it is that the Government 
intend to do at the next general election that 
makes it necessary for them to appoint an 
electoral registrar as a shield for them? If they 
want to amend the law so as to make it fair, 
there are better lines upon which they could 
travel. For instance, in large districts a justice 
of the peace will refuse to attest claims because 
he wants to sit upon the bench, and, as is well 
known, persons are generally appointed because 
they have been supporters of the present Go­
vernment. There· are a few who mav be in 
sympathy with this side of the House, but 
nearly all are in sympathy with the other side, 
and they are not likely to attest the claims of 
men who are likely to vote against the side 
they favour. If the Premier wanted to do 
justice he would bring in an amendment like 
that foreshadowed by the leader of the Opposi­
tion -that the attestation of a couple of electors 
in th3 district should be sufficient, more especially 
when the person who made a false declaratiOn 
woulj be liable to a penalty. The fact is that 
the Government simply want to keep people off 
the rolls. Of course no person before whom any 
claim has been attested shall be allowed to sit as 
a member of the court, but the effect of that will 
be to lead justices of the peace to refuse to 
attest claims, because they will want to sit on 
the revision court. A justice of the peace would 
simply tell an applicant to get Smith, who livrs 
lOO miles away, to attest his claim, but when he 
got there he would probably find that Smith had 
gone to Sydney ; and in that way he would be 
kept month after month trying to get on the 
roll. This is a state of things that ib is within 
the power of the Premier to alter. I remember 

hearing the hon. gentleman advocate that we 
should make it easier to get on the rolls, making 
the penalty for making a false declaration as 
heavy as possible. I would not mind if the 
penalty were made five years' imprisonment, so 
long as men had an opportunity of getting on 
the roll if they are legally entitled to do so. 'rhe 
hon. member for Rockhampton North said it 
looked as if the Bill were brought in to give 
somebody a billet, because the Political Associa­
tion is getting out of funds. They want to pay 
their agents out of the Treasury, and it is very 
possible that we may have "the undElrground 
electoral engineer," Mr. Bnlcock, appointed to 
this position. 

The Ha>IE SECRETARY : Very likely. 
Mr. DANIELS: Well, I am very sorry to 

hear it. We knew there was some reason for it 
before, but the hon. gentleman has given us the 
key to it now. 

The HoME 8ECRETARY : Talk sense. 
Mr. DANIELS: I am talking enough sense 

for the hon. gentleman to understand that I 
think this Bill would be more harm than good, 
and I intend to do all I can to stop it from 
passing. 

Mr. GUOOM: What I desire to say upon 
this Bill is purely upon public grounds; I do not 
want to say anything that bears any relation to 
anyone in particular upon this matter. I inter­
jected during the Premier's speech with respect 
to the effect of clause 4, and I understand since 
the hon. gentleman S)loke that, however 
ambiguously it may be worded, that clause is 
intended to preclude the electoral registrar from 
sitting in court in his own case. 

The HOME SECRETARY: In his own case? 
Mr. GROOM: I will explain it in this way : 

In one of the registration courts in the colony, 
on the 5th November an electoral registrar, in 
spite of all remonstrance, insisted on sitting and 
adjudicating upon his own case. The parties 
interested sought the opinion of a learned counsel 
in Brisbane as to whether an electoral registrar 
could sit on the bench and adjudicate upon the 
claims of persons against whose names he had 
previously marked the words "dead," " left," 
or "disqualified." The answer of the learned 
counsel, carefully and diplomatically given, was­
" There is nothing in the Electoral Act to pre­
vent it." Well, I contend that there ought to 
be something in the Electoral Act to prevent it. 

The PREMIER : Was he not sitting as police 
magistrate? 

Mr. TURLEY: Yes; but he was electoral regis­
trar as well. 

Mr. GROOM: I will give the House a con­
crete case, that they may see how it works, and 
in the case I quote it cannot be urged that there 
was a scarcity of justices. This is taken from 
the Mackay Standard, and I find it corresponds 
with the report in the Mackay Mm·cury-

Tbe aunual electoral revision court was held yester­
day, the court consisting of Messrs. A. Hasenkamp, 
E. R. :-1. M:acOarthy, H. B. Black, J. P. Kemp, D. Lacy, 
H. L. Black, W. G. Hodges, 0. Smith, 0. P. M:au, and 
W. Appelt. 

After the court had been declared open Mr_ H. B. 
Black said:-! would like to ask the court if the elec­
toral registrar can sit as chail·man of this court. The 
court is assembled for the purpose o! revising the work 
of the electoral registrar, and I do not think the regis­
trar is competent to sit in judgment upon his own work. 
The Electoral Act says, " The electoral registrar shall 
make out a correct list of names of all persons against 
\Vhomhe places the word' dead,'' left,' or' disqualified,' 
showing the word so placed against each name, and 
shall cause a copy of such list to be published. He shall 
send by post to such person at his usual or last known 
place of abode a notice informing him that it is pro­
posed to expunge his name from the roll." The object 
of the court is to deal with the work done by the elec­
toral registrar, and I contend that the registrar is not 
justified in sitting in judgment upon his own work, At 
any rate, it is hardly seemly that he should do so, 
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~fr. Hodges: I do ' ot see where any objection comes 
in; l\fr. Hasenkampis police magist.rate, and in virtue of 
his position is entitled to sit on the bench and adjudi~ 
cate on all cases brought before the court, 

Mr. 31acCarthy: I quite agree with ~fr. Black. It 
would be highly indecent for a m>tn to adjudicate upon 
a case in which he is the chief witnesg, and I move that 
a vote be taken on the question. 

~fr. Black: I do not wish the mattm· to go to a vote. 
I wish to put the matter to Mr. Hasenkamp himself. 
If he is satisfied that he is competent to sit on the bench 
in his dual capacity, I am satisfied. 

Mr. Hasenkamp: I have been ap10ointed police magis­
trate ff1l' this district, and as such I am ent;tled to act 
a~ chairman of this court. I have also been appointed 
electoral registrar, and I am of opinion that I can sit in 
this court as being qualified to act as both police lnagis­
trate and electoral registrar, I also hold some twenty 
other appointments, and I do not see why I should be 
debarred from acting in a dual capacity. .\othing has 
been done with regard to electoral claims since the end 
of August, and with the permission of the court I intend 
to preside and a1so to act as electoral registrar. 
I cannot but think this was never intended by 
the Act. I am speaking, as I have said, only on 
public ground~, and I say that is enough to cast 
a suspicion in the public mind that the Act is 
not being carried out justly where such thinf;S 
are done. Subsequently in this case the mag-is­
trate and electoral registrar insisted that the 
name of one elector whom he had marked as 
having left the district should be rejected, though 
an agent appeared for the elector to show that he 
was still living in the district ; but the other 
magistrates insisted upon the retention of the 
name, and it was retained. I point out that the 
magistrate would have no more right to sit and 
adjudicate upon what he had done in his 
twenty other capacities than he had to adjudi­
cate upon his own work as electoral registrar. 

Mr. STORY : To what district are you alluding? 
Mr. GROO~f : I will give the Cunnamulla 

case if the hon. member wishes. 
Mr. STORY: I wish you would. I know some­

thing about it, and I may be able to give you 
some information. 

Mr. GROOM : I wish the bun. member would. 
I am not saying one word as to whether the 
electoral registrar was not justified in the 
course he took at Cunnamulla in sending out 
objections to seventy-five names. But it is 
another question altogether as to whether he 
was right in "itting upon those cases when the 
time came for those objections to be considered. 
I hold it would have been far better for him on 
all grounds, on public grounds particularly, if 
he had communicated with the Government, 
and the police m 1gistrate at Charleville had been 
asked to adjudicate on those claims. I say that 
the fact of electoral registrars sitting in judgment 
on their own cases is causing unnecessary friction 
and scenes in court which it should be the duty 
of this Honse to prevent, and if this clause is 
intended to bring that about the Chief Secretary 
will find no warmer supporter than myself. If 
the hon. member for Balonne wishes me to 
mention the Cunnamulla case, I will do so. 

Mr. STORY: I have not the slightest objection. 
Mr. GROOM: If the hon. member can throw 

any light on it, all the betttr for him that he 
should have the opportunity of doing so. 

Mr. KEOGH: It is a disgraceful case, take 
it any way you like. 

The SPEAKER: Order, order! 
Mr. GROOM: I simply give it as reported in 

the Cunnamulla Comet ;-
When the police magistrate took his seat on tbe 

bench on Tuesday for the purpose of revising the lists 
and hearing evidence in support of the claims of those 
persons who ha.d been placed on the disqualified list, It 
at once became evident that more than ordinary interest 
was centred in the proceedings. The court was soon 
uncomfortably crowded. 

::nr. S. S. Pegg appeared for the majority of those 
whose names had been marked off, and Mr. Sachse 
watched the case on behalf ot the objector (Mr. G. H. 

Austin, J.P.>. When the claim ofJoseph Blake came on 
for consideration, the dull monotony of the proceedings 
was rudely broken. Notwithstanding that tbe police 
magistrate allowed the name of Thomas AnderRon, a 
coach-driver in the employ of 1\fe~Hs. Cobb and Co., to 
remain on the roll, he po~itively refused to treat the 
claim of Blake, which was similar in every respect to 
that of .A.nderson's, in alike manner. Mr. Peggrefm·red 
in pretty strong terms to the gross inconsistency of the 
bench. 

The SPEAKER: Order! I hardly think the 
case the hon. member is quuting has anything to 
do with the question before the House. It is not 
a question whether the magistrates did their 
duty or not. The former case quoted by the 
hon. member appeared to have a direct bearing 
on the question before the House, but this quota 
now seems to be dealing- with the action of 
the magistrate. 

Mr. GROOM : I know it is not right for a 
member to argue with you, Mr. Speaker. What 
I desire to say to you is that the gentleman in 
this case was an electoral registrar; he also sat 
upon the bench as police magistrate. I am desir­
ing, if I can, to show the Chief Secretary that 
this Bill will not be complete unless there is a 
clause ineerted preventing any electoral registrar 
from sitting and adjudicating in those cases if it 
can possibly be avoided. If you think I am 
wrong, Mr. Speaker--

The SPEAKER : The hon. member is quite 
right in his contention, if the case he is quoting 
is applicable to this clause, but it seemed to me 
that it was not. 

Mr. GROOM: To resume the quotation-
Mr. Pegg, with great vehemence, said that not only 

did he exceed hi• duty, but he had used every effort in 
his power to prevent certain persons from getting on 
the roll. 

The P .~L: It's a wilful lie, and I challenge you to prove 
it. 

JHr. Pegg said that he could prove it if the electoral 
registrar would only go into the box and allow himself 
to be cross-examined as to his actions in the matter. 

'rhe P.M. pointed out that he was at present sitting 
as police rr1agistrate, and did not feel disposed to comply 
with ::lfr. Pegg's request. 

l\fr. Pegg said that it was very unfortunate tbat the 
electoral registrar and police magistrate were one and 
the same person, otherwise he (Mr. Pegg) would have 
been able to put the former in the box. The electoral 
registrar had departed from the usual practice of making 
inquiries as to the whereabouts of electors who were 
supposed to have left tbe district. Had he handed over 
the list to the police, and instructed them to find out 
the necessary particulars, there would not have been 
any cause for complaint. But he marked the men off 
without maldng these inquiries, and it was here that 
the injustice was done. 

The P.M. stated that he had given the list to the 
police for the purpose of finding out the required 
information. 

:\fr. Pegg said that the electoral registrar had only 
given one list to the police, but he did not seek the 
assistance of the police with regard to the majority of 
those against whom objections had been lodged. He 
would like to know tbe reasons which prompted him to 
mark off the names of those on the list he had in his 
possession. 
Then there was an unseemly scene between the 
solicitor and the police magistrate, which ended 
in one name being retained and the rest being 
objected to by the police magistrate. 

The HmiE SECRETARY: Was he the only man 
on the bench? 

Mr. GROOM: He was the only one. What 
I want to point ont is that these unseemly scenes 
in court are not desirable, and that if we can 
prevent them we should do so. 

The HOME SECRETARY : The proper way would 
be to call in a constable and send the solicitor to 
the rightabout. 

Mr. GROOM: That may be the opinion of 
the hon. member, but probably other persons, 
both inside and outside this House, may take a 
different view. I s"'y that an uneasy feeling is 
being created in the public mind that there is 
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something wrong in connection with the elec­
toral rolls, and if it can be removed in any 
way it is our duty to remove it_ I there­
fore ask the Chief Secretary whether in clause 
4 it is not quite possible to do so hy a slight 
amendment_ Of course it is conceivable that 
there may be a district where it would be 
impossible for the registrar to avoid sitti,lg 
on the bench on account of there being no 
other magistrate, but in the case where there 
were twelve other magistrates on the bench 
there was no necessity for the registrar to actJ. 
It would have been better, and would have 
tended to remove 'JVery semblance of partiality, 
if he had retired and allowed the other magis­
trates to determine the cases, and he as registrar 
had given all the necessary information to prove 
or disprove the claims sent in to him. In Eng­
land all the revisions are conducted by revising 
barristers-men who understand the law. 

Mr. LEAHY : There is machinery for cases 
being referred to the District Court. 

Mr. GROOM: I am aware that provision is 
made in the principal Act for cases to be heard 
in this colony by the District Court judges, but 
the machinery provided has never yet been put 
into practical operation. I would much prefer­
and I do not think the expense would be 
objected to by either side of the House-tbat we 
should amend the Bill in the direction of 
appointing the District Court judges to revise all 
the electoral rolls, and thus remove from the 
police courts anything tending towards what 
may be thought pn,rtiality. I have no objection 
to the second reading of the Bill, but I sincerely 
hope the hon. gentleman in charge of it will 
think over the matter of electoral registrars. 
Those scenes may happen in any other place, in 
addition to those I have mentioned. I am 
aware that some electoral registrars discharge 
their duties in the most efficient manner possible. 
I have known instances of electoral registrars who 
have received documents from an association in 
Brisbane in connection with their duties, and they 
have thrown them into the waste-paper basket, 
"'nd have acted conscientiously and uprightly. I 
am satisfied, therefore, that the hon. gentleman 
has electoral registrars in his department who 
know what their duties are, and who are con­
scientious enough to discharge them, and they 
ought to be relieved from the invidious position 
of having to sit in a court and adjudicate in the 
manner I have described. I am not sn,ying thn,t 
those men were actuated by bad motives, or that 
they went upon the bench with the determina­
tion to strike men off nolens volens; but I do say 
they ought to be precluded by Act of Parlin,ment 
from sitting on any case in court which they 
themselves have sent there. I hope the hon. 
gentleman will endeavour, if he can, to insert a 
cln,use to prevent anything of that kind occurring 
in the future. 

The HOME SECRETARY: If the hon. 
member who has just sat down had thought of 
this matter in all its bearings, he would scarcely 
have delivered the speech and advocated the 
views that he has clone. The whole ar.gument of 
the hon. member, until the last few minutes of 
his speech, wn,s that electoral registrars are 
partisn,ns. He was good enough to say that he 
knew one or two who were net partisans, but by 
implication all the others were partisans. But 
the hon. member has forgotten this: that if his 
argument is good with regard to registration 
courts, it is good with regard to all courts over 
which police magistrates and justices preside. Is 
not an electoral registrar, if he happens to hold the 
dual position of police mn,gistrate and registrar, 
in exactly the same position as a police magis­
trate, or a presiding justice is in who happens to 
have taken an information in a case wh1eh is 
ultimately to be brought before h1m? The two 

cases are exactly parallel. In the one case, the 
magistrate listens to the statement made by the 
compbinant in"' case; it is ex parte, but the com­
pln,inant makes out a prima facie case against the 
defendant. 'fhe magistrate, after having heard 
that statement, issues his summons or his warrant 
as the case may be, and n,fterwards, very pro­
perly and naturally, presides upon that case. 
And I have yet to learn that the slightest impu­
tation should be made against his parti.,Jity for 
doing so. What is the position of a registrar? 
He is n, public officer charged with the perform 
ance of a public duty. It is his duty to make 
certain inquiries, and upon the answers he gets to 
those inquiries, and upon information that may 
be voluntarily given to him by any person in the 
community-it is his duty practically upon that 
ex parte statement to issue his summons or to ask 
the person against whom that statement is made 
to come in and prove his claim to remain e>n the 
roll. If the electoml registrar, assuming that he 
has afterw:.rds to sit on the bench as police 
magistrate, is to be regarded as a partisan becn,use 
he iosued that summons in the first instn,nce on 
the information given to him, then I say it is 
not the function of any magistrate to sit upon 
any case in which he has heard an ex parte 
statement by a complainant. There is no getting 
away from that argument, and the hon. member, 
if he desires to enforce the principle with regard 
to one court, must ask that it should be also 
enforced with regard to the other court. Speak­
ing of the Mackay court, the hon. member said 
it was desirable that there should be no semblance 
of partiality. He tells us that the bench was full 
of magistrates on thn,t occasion. Can he not tell 
us who those magistrates were? Has he never 
heard of any of those magistmtes? Does he not 
know that one of them was a candid:1te at the 
last election, and intends to be a candidate at 
the next election? 

Mr. GROOM: I am aware he was a candidate 
at the last election. 

The HOME SECRETARY: Is the · hon .. 
member not also aware that he is now a candi­
date for the next election? The hon. member 
seems to know more about it than he cares to 
tell us. At all events every hon. member can 
form his own conclusion. But when we find a 
large number of magistrates in a place where, as 
the hon. member himself said, party feeling ran 
high, what is the natural inference but that the 
two parties were represented on that bench? 
And who is more fitted to preside upon that 
bench and to hold the balance between those 
parties than the police magistrate who is respon­
sible to Government and to Parliament for his 
actions? 

Mr. LEAHY: Do you say there were partisan:; 
on the bench ? 

The HOME SECRETARY: I do not; but 
the hon. member has told us that party feeling 
ran high, and that the bench was crowded with 
magistrates. I said the inference to be drawn 
was that under such circumstances the two 
political parties wouJd. be represented on the 
bench. Every one of those magistrates had 
votes, or they had no business there. 

Mr. KEOGH: Not necessarily. 
The HOME SECRETARY: Of course we 

all know that it is not necessary for a magistrate 
to be a voter; but I say that in 999 cases out of 
1,000 those men would have votes in that 
electorate. Now, the police magistrate has no 
vote. Where is there any justice in this imputa.­
tion of partiality against either an electoral 
registrar or police magistrate, v. hen the legisla­
ture hn,s taken the trouble to deprive police 
magistrates of their votes in order that they 
shall not be partisans? No person in the com­
munity is better qualified to preside at a revision 
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court than a police magistrate, whom, for that 
very purpose, we have deprived of one of the 
greatest privileges he can enjoy. The hon 
member wants to know why District Court 
judges do not go through the country revis 
ing the electoral rolls. This seems to be just 
about as thoughtless an expression as the rest 
of his speech. Does he remember the extent 
of Queensland, and the number of revision 
courts which are held throughout the colony, 
and that the period within which these courts 
mmt be held extends only from the 1st to the 2ht 
of Xovember? I should like to know whether the 
whole of the judicial business of the country in 
the District Courts is to be suspended during those 
three weeks-and possibly for a week before and 
a week after in travelling-in order that the Dis­
trict Court judges might travel through the 
country and sit on revising benches? And then 
they would not be able to sit on more than one­
tenth of the benches of the colony. That must 
be patent to anyone. 

Mr. G Romr: What is it put in the Act for? 
The HOME SECRETARY: I do not know 

that a District Court judge has ever sat. 
Mr. GRomr: I know that, but what is it in 

the Act for? 
The HO ::VIE SECRETARY: Thehon. member 

ought to know just as well as I do why it was 
put there. I take it that the hon. member was 
here when it was done. What is the good of his 
asking me? If a District Court judge happens to 
be in a town when a revision court is being held, 
th0re is no reason why he should not sit on the 
bench, but to say that all revioion courts should be 
presided over by District Court judges is to put 
forward a proposition which is absurd on the face 
of it. It would be utterly impossible, humanly 
speaking, for the District Court judges to do it if 
we had three or four times as many as we have 
at present. I think, for the reasons I have given, 
that a police magistrate is a very much more 
reliable person to preside at a revision court than 
a political justice of the peace, who having a vote, 
and being apparently interested in electoral 
matters, has naturally his own political views. 
The argument is entirely in favour of the police 
magistrate presiding, whether he is electoral 
regis1:rar or not. 

Mr. BOLES : You know that they have no 
power to knock anyone off the rolls unless he has 
been previously challenged. 

The HOME SECRETARY: Of course I 
know that. Does the hon. member say that no 
one with strong pclitical views ever sits on the 
revision bench? The hon. member is altogether 
wrong, if be does. 'fbe hon. member has sat on 
the bench himself since he has been a member of 
Parliament. 

Mr. BoLES: Never. 
The HOME SECRETARY: Hasn't he? 
Mr. BoLEs: Ko. 
The HOME SECRETARY: At all events 

the hon. member has sat in revision courts. 
Mr. BoLES : Years ago, but not within the 

last six years. 
The HOME SECRETARY: Had the hon. 

member no political views then? 
Mr. BOLES : I may have had political views, 

but you know I bad no power to remove any 
name from the roll. 

The HOME SECRETARY: I do know it. 
Does the hon. member take me for an utter 
ignoramus? 

Mr. BOLES : Then why does the hon. gentle­
man talk about political partisans? 

The HOME SECRETARY: Perhaps the 
hon, member is not a partisan. I am very glad 
to accept his statement. 

The SECRETARY l'OR RAILWAYS: No such 
thing exists. 

The HOME SECRETARY: I suppose it 
does not if the bon. member is not one. I have 
said enough to show that when the hon. member 
for Toowoomba spoke as he did in his opening 
remarks of a police magistrate sitting on his 
own case, he was making a statement which was 
scarcely justified by the fact. The case in which 
a police magistrate presides in a revision court is 
no more his own case than is a caRe brought 
before him his own case because he happens to 
have taken the information upon which that case 
is founded. 

Mr. GI\OOM: That is a matter of opinion. 
The HOME SECRETARY: Well, itisamatter 

of opinion. I am sorry I cannot convince the hon. 
member. One hon. member has asked whether 
this principal electoral registrar would have any 
control over the benches? That is an absurd 
question to ask. Of course he would have no 
possible control over the benches-at least I 
should be very much surprised if he had. But I 
can assure hon. members that it is very desirable 
that the whole electoral business throughout the 
colony should be focussed in some officer in the 
Home Department under the Under Secretary. 
I asked the bon. member who spoke in this 
strain, and who said-or implied-that this prin­
cipal electoral registrar would be subject to 
political partisan influence from the head of his 
department, whether there was an imputation 
that political pressure was now brought to bear 
upon the Under Secretary, who has to per­
form to a very large extent these duties, 
together with a multitude of other duties. The 
hon. member said "No." Then why should 
there be any imputation of political pressure 
being brought to bear upon a public officer, 
whose duty it would certainly be to at once 
make known the fact of any such political 
influence being brought to bear upon him? I 
may be pardoned for digressing for a moment, 
by way of illustration; but the first thing which 
struck me when I went to the Home Department 
was that there was a great deal too much 
centralisation in the Under Secretary. That is 
what struck me, coming from the Lands Depart­
ment, in which there are a number of sub­
departments. The Under Secretary in the 
Home Department has to deal with all kinds of 
things which should be focussed in various 
sub-departments. I am perfectly satisfied, 
from a departmental point of view, that the 
business connected with electoral matters would 
be very much more efficiently conducted, and 
there would be far fewer complaints made in this 
House, if we had some officer immediately under 
the Under Secretary in charge of a sub-depart­
ment charged with the administration of the 
electoral laws. The same thing would apply to 
other sub· departments which I could name, and 
I hope to see these matters rectified, as well as 
the one with which we are dealing at this 
moment. The leader of the Opposition desires, 
as I understand him, that there should be pro­
Yision made rendering it easier for men to get 
their names on the rolls by inaugurating a system 
which he has proposed before-namely, that 
anyone could have his name witnessed by two 
electors. There are two ways of looking au it. 

The SPEAKER : Order ! I must ask the 
hon. member to allow that question to remain in 
abeyance in the meantime. It does not eome 
within the scope of the Bill. 

The HOME SECRETARY: Of course I bow 
to vour ruling, Mr. Speaker, but I would point 
O'lt.that it places me somewhat at a disadvantage 
in not being allowed to refer to the question at 
all, when the hon- member was allowed to dilate 
upon it at some ,length. 
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The SPEAKER : The hon. member must 
remember that I called the hon. member for 
Bundaberg to order. When I saw the trend of 
his argument I checked him. 

The HOME SECRETARY: He proceeded 
all the same. I have nothing more to say. 

Mr. BROWNE: I have listened very atten­
tively, and I expected the Home Secretary to 
use a great deal better argument against the hem. 
member for Toowoomba than he has done. 
Between a police magistrate sitting in an 
ordinary case and sitting as electoral registrar I 
see no parallel at all. 

The Ho~IE SECRETARY : That is your mis­
fortune. 

Mr. BROWNE: It may be my misfortune, or 
it may be the misfortune of the hon. gentleman 
that he is not able to make himself clear to 
people of ordinary intelligence. A police 
magistrate issuing an information against anyone 
is on a different footing altogether ; after he issues 
an information the person who lodged the com­
plainthas to come into court and prove what he has 
charged against the defendant, but in the elec­
toral court the electoral registrar marks "dead," 
"left the district," or "disqualified " against 
the n;tmes of the persons whose qualification is 
challenged. 

The HoME SECRETARY: He does not do that in 
court. 

Mr. BRO\VNE: No, he does it previously, 
A notice then appears in a newspaper giving a 
list of the persons against whose names those 
marks have been made, and calling upon them to 
appear in court on a certain day and disprove 
the statement that they are di~qualified. If they 
do not appear their names are at once removed 
from the roll, and cases have occurred in which 
names have been removed from the roll in spite 
of the fact that the persons concerned have 
attended the court. The hon. gentleman should 
also know that prior to the sitting of the 
court the electoral registrar is supposed to send 
notices to the persons who are said to be 
disqualified, and that there might be cases 
where such notices were never sent out, and 
where in consequence of the fault of the regis­
trar in that respect a man would not a pp ar 
in court. There is no parallel at all between the 
two cases. With regard to the cases quoted by 
the hon. memLer for Drayton and Toowoomba, 
an account of which we have all seen in the 
public prints, I think it was a disgrace to the 
court in both places ; there was no fair play. 
There ma.y have been partisans on the bench, 
but I do not know anything about that. 

The Ho~m SECRETARY: I suppose that is what 
is wanted. 

Mr. BROWNE : If the hon. gentleman has 
been in the habit of packing benches, I have not. 
Since I have been a justice of the peace I have 
never sat on the bench on any case of the l{ind. 

The HoME SECRETARY: Nor have I ever sat 
on the bench in my life. 

Mr. BROWNE : With regard to the first part 
of this Bill I do not share the fears which have 
been expressed by the bon. member for North 
Rockhampton. It might be as well to have a 
non-political head, but at the same time I think 
the argument which was used by the bon. mem­
ber for Rockhampton, and which the Home 
Secretary tried to distort, was perfectly legiti­
mate. The Premier in mtrodncing the Bill 
stated that the chief reason why he brought it in 
was because he wanted to remove this matter 
from political influence, and it was a fair infer­
ence to draw from that statement that the 
present Under Secretary for the Home Depart­
ment, 'who has charge of the matter, was under 

political influence. While I agree with the reason 
that it is well to remove the matter from political 
influence, I do not believe, and I do not 
think there is a member on this side of the 
House who believes that lYir. Ryder is amenable 
to such influence as far as electoral rolls are 
concerned. And I may say that so far as my 
acquaintance with electoral registrars in theN orth 
goes I could not wish for a fairer or more just 
set of men; I do not believe that they have used 
their positions in a wrong way, or been improperly 
influenced by anyone. I have the same feeling 
as the leader of the Opposition with regard to 
the time this Bill has been introduced. The 
Premier stated that he did not introduce it 
earlier for fear it would be thought that they 
were going to use the provision respecting a 
principal electoral registrar during the next 
general election. That may be a legitimate 
reason, bnt as the measure has been delayed till 
the end of the session, and this proviwm will not 
have any effect for the next year or two, what is 
the use of cumbering the Bill with it ? 

Mr. LEAHY: It might have a good deal to do 
with the next elections. 

Mr. BRO"\YNE: It will have no effect on 
the rolls. However, I do not think it is worth 
quarrelling about; it IS like a blister on a 
wooden leg-it will do neither gocd nor harm. 
\Vith respect to the 4th clause, I am of the 
same opinion as the hon. member for Drayton 
and Toowoomba-namely, that it should be 
extended to electoral registrars ; for, as has been 
pointed out, there are places in the colony where, 
if justices of the peace are excluded from sitting 
on the bench, there will be nobody to revise the 
rolls. If the leader of the Opposition moves the 
amendment he suggested I shall certainly sup­
port it, because the difficulty o£ getting on the 
roll is one of the greatest troubles we have to 
deal with at the present time in the outside 
districts. As to the Bill generally I shall sup­
port the second reading, in the hope that it will 
be amended in committee in tho way which has 
been suggested. 

Mr. STORY: I am not going to take up the 
time of the House in making even a second-read­
ing speech on this measure, about which there 
does not appear to be any great diversity of 
opinion. But I claim the indulgence of the 
House while I make an explanation and repel a 
most unwarranted attack on a perfectly honest 
and just man. The statement which has been 
made is altogether oc parte, and has been gathered 
from a paper, the managing- director of which is 
lYir. Pegg, the lllan who quarrelled with Mr. 
Francis. I eau certainly say that the matter is 
wrongly reported, because there are no steno­
graphers at all in Cnnnamulla, and the news­
paper reports are elrtborated from ordinary notes. 
The hon. member for Dray ton and Toowoomba 
quoted from the Comet. I am pleased that the 
matter has been brought up, because I have been 
excessively annoyed for some time at hearing 
allusions to what happened at Cunnamulla some 
little time ago. The statements which have been 
made have gathered volume until it has appeared 
that some very great injustice has been done, 
and Mr. JTrancis's character has been attacked 
in the most unwarrantr•,ble m~nner. There is 
another paper published in the same township, 
and although it labours under the same dis­
abilities as the Comet, having no stenographic 
reporter, still I may say that if there is 
any justification for the languag-e used 
by the registrar it is shown in that paper. 
I may be permitted to read an extract frnm it. 
J\Ir. Pegg, solicitor, appeared for some men who 
harl been disqualified, and Jliir. J!'rancis "as 
sitting as electoral registrar. It was evident 
from the gathering in court thl1t there was going 
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to be an attack made upon the police magistrate, 
and at the start of the proceedings Mr. Francis 
said-

I think I can 8horten mattm·~. Mr. Pegg-unless you 
have some reason to believe that the electoral registrar 
has wrongfully marked the roll, in which case your 
proper course would be to lay your case before the 
Home Secretary. 
Mr. J!'Jtanci~ was perfectly willing to take the 
responsibility of his action, and told Mr. Pegg 
the proper course to take under the circum · 
stances. He continued-

Speaking as electoral registrar, I may say that I 
have always had good grounds for any markings I have 
made on the rolls of which I have had charge here for 
the past sixteen years. To continue further in the 
present strain would only be wasting the time of the 
court. 
Then when it came to discussing a certain case 
Mr. Pegg said to the registrar-

! tell you if I am not satisfied witb the way these 
cases are conducted I shall see if I cannot get satisfac­
tion elsewhere. 

The Police :Magistrate : I caution you, M1'. Pegg, 
before yon go any further. If you go on in this strain 
I certainly shall have to use the powers conferred upon 
me by the Act. 
Practically the relations had become so strained 
that the police magistrate had to threaten to lock 
Mr. Pegg up. That is what he means. 

Mr. Pegg: Clly remarks apply to the electoral regis­
trar. 

The Police Magistrate: The electoral registrar has 
had sixteen years' experience in his work, and has 
never exercised his ft:.nctions in marking the rolls 
except on what he considered goo·l grounds. 

~fr. Pegg: They seem to be always exercised on behalf 
of Story. 

The Police ;;ragistrate: I can only say that whoever 
says so is telling a lie. If you say so, I can only say you 
are a liar, Mr. Pegg. 
Mr. Francis was not justified, perhaps, in ndiug 
that language, but allow me to say that who ever 
makes that statement is a wilful liar. For all 
the time I have known Mr. Francis I have never 
written him one letter on electoral matters, nor 
has he communicated with me. I would never 
dream of trying to induce him to do anything 
which would favour me. But Mr. Pegg cannot 
understand that. It comes naturally to him to 
be dense in these matters. He has been there 
only a short time, aud Mr. Francis a very long 
time. Mr. Francis has occupied his present 
position for sixteen years, and has gained the 
confidence and goodwill of the whole of the 
inhabitants. 

Mr. MoMASTER: Except Pegg. 
Mr. STORY : I am very much tempted to 

say something about Mr. Pegg which could be 
corroborated by others in this House, and which 
would put a different aspect on th1s matter, but 
I refrain from doing so. In proof of what I say 
as to how little it is to my interest to keep Mr. 
Fraucis where he is, I may read almost the first 
speech I made when I came to this House in 
1897:-

)fr. STORY called the attention of the Home Sec­
retary to an injustice done the police magistrate in his 
district, which was really a compliment to that gentle­
man. He was so good, so well liked, and so trusted 
that he had been left where he was-not too long for 
the people, but too long for his own health and advan­
tage. It was about fourteen or fifteen years since J\.ir. 
Francis had gone out into the Vfest, and, with a few 
short holidays, he had been there ever since. He hoped 
that when the magistrates were being shifted Mr. 
Francis's case would be considered-not as a matter of 
justice to the district, but in justice to the gentleman 
himself. 
Almost the first thing I did when I came here 
was tc try and get a transfer for Mr. Francis. 
I have applied to Sir Horace Tozer, to the 
present Premier, and to the present Home 
Secretary. Why, if I were such a blackguard as 
Mr. Pegg would try to make me out, it would 
be to my interest to keep Mr. Francis where he 

is. I can only say, further, that if hon. mem­
bers will look at the marking of the roll in 
question they will find that Mr. Fraucis has 
been most impartial-that he has struck off the 
owner of Yarmouth station ; Mr. Willis, a 
member of the New South \Vales legislature; 
Mr. Drew, of Ivanhoe; and many other 
prominent men-in his efforts to mark the roll 
honestly and impartially. The whole attack 
made upon him is utterly unjustifiable. Per­
haps, as I have said, he was wrong in nsing 
such an expression from the bench, but consider­
ing the aggravation he received from Mr. Pegg 
I hardly wunder at what he said. . . 

Mr. BOLES : This debate has dnfted entirely 
away from the merits of the Bill, and I 
do not intend to make any reference to what 
has taken place at Mackay aud Cunnamulla­
although matters do not seem to have gone on 
in a way that the majority think right. The 
hon. member for Toowoomba when introducing 
the question, said he did so purely on pub!ic 
grounds and to show that these electoral regis­
trars were placed in au invidious position. I do 
not say they are partisans. They may be per. 
fectly c0nscientious, but a man who gets infor­
matiOn supplied to him-whether rightly or 
wrongly-and marks the rolls, certainly sho!Jld 
not sit on ihe bench afterwards to reVIse. 
The Premier laid particular emphasis upon the 
purity of the rolls, and I think the House is at 
one with him in that matter. I do not think any 
hon. member desires to see names on the roll 
that bave no right to be there, and it is just as 
well that this proposal for appointment of a 
principal electoral registrar has only been brought 
forward at the end of the year, because it cannot 
now be said that it was done with a view to 
getting people ou the rolls for the present 
year. But., still if this officer cannot do any 
effectual service for another twelve months, I 
do not see why the Bill cannot stand over. I 
cannot see verv much in the Bill, but I can 
see a great deal that ought to be in it, 
a.nd I am only willing to support the secoJ'!d 
reading in the hope that the Government w1ll 
accept some amendments in committee which 
will tend to improve it. The hon. member for 
Bundaberg pointed out the difficulty there was 
in the outside districts in getting on to the rolls, 
but that matter is not dealt with in this Bill, nor 
is that of having all the electiom upon one day. 
There is no reason why they should not be all on 
one day, as is the case in New South \Vales and 
South Australia, and it would be a step iu the 
right direction if the system were introduced 
here. In regard to attesting claims, I do nob 
see why any respectable householder, or person 
paying a certain amount of rent to the Crown, or 
owning a certain amount of property, should not 
attest claims. 

The SPEAKER : Order ! I trust the hon, 
member will not proceed further in that direc­
tion. 

Mr. BOLES: I do not intend to say any more 
about that, but it has been already referred to, 
and I thought I might refer to it also. We have 
been told that the duty of this electoral re~Zistrar 
will be to direct the local officers, but what infor­
mation will he have to go upou? I believe most 
of them are fair men, and therefore I do not see 
what the effect of this appointment will be. 
Another amendment that might be made is in 
connection with putting a number on the corner 
of a ballot-paper. 

The SPEAKER : Order ! The whole of the 
Elections Act is not open for discussion. The 
hon. member must confine himself to the provi­
sions in the Bill. 

Mr. BOLES : I thought I was perfectly justi­
fied in referring to amendments that might be 
introduced into the Bill. ' 
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The SPEAKER: The hon. member is wrong. 
He must deal with the Bill as it is. He must 
see that if the whole electoral law was open to 
review, debate would be interminable. 

Mr. BOLES: But for the possibility of getting 
some amendments into the Bill in committee I 
do not see what is the good of wasting time over 
it. The Pretnier has not shown what benefit the 
country will gain by appointing an electoral 
registrar; and so far as the other clauses are 
concerned, I do not think they "'ill do much 
good between now and the opening of next 
Parliament. A great deal has been said about 
justices attesting claims and sitting on the revi· 
sion court ~tfterwards, and there is a great deal 
in it. I have not sat on a revision court for the 
last seven years, but I have attested a great 
number of claims. Men come to me in the 
belief that if I attest their claims there is a 
possibility of their not being rejected, and I 
attest them. That is about the only thing in 
connection with elections that I have been guilty 
of since I have been a member of this House. If 
these men are to have a vote at all I must attest 
the claims. Although the Premier introduced 
this measure in a very courteous way, I do nut 
think he has given m sufficient reason for appoint­
ing this officer, and I think the matter might 
very well stand over till next session. But in 
the hope of being able to mnke some beneficial 
amendments in committee I shall support the 
second reading. 

Mr. DRAKE : I was rather surprised when I 
heard the Home Secretary defending this practice 
of allowing a police magistrate and an electoral 
officer to take part in the proceedings in the 
revision court. I was under the impression that, 
!'lt~ough there is nothing i~ the Act to prevent 
1t, 1t was merely an overs1ght, and when this 
Bill is in committee I shall be prepared to 
move that subsection 2 of clause 11 of the 
principal Act be amended so as to read, "No 
magistrate who is not also an electoral registrar." 
\Ve can discuss this without making any imputa­
tion whatever upon any magistrate who has sat 
upon the bench. So long as the Act makes him 
eligible for the performance of those dnties, it is 
very natural that a police magistrate might 
imagine that it is part ·of his duty to take his 
place upon the bench, and that he would be 
shirking his work if he dirl not do so. In spite 
of thao it seems to me a terribly anomalous thing 
that an electoral registrar should preside at a 
revision court to ~upervise his own work. The case 
mentioned by the Home Secretary of a police 
magistrate taking a complaint or information is 
not analogous at all, because there the magistrate 
must take the complaint in his magisterial ea pacity. 
His action there is of course ex parte, but as 
soon as he sits on the bench to adjudicate upon 
the complaint, the person who made it has to 
come forward, and by sworn evidence prove the 
complaint he had submitted to the magistrate. 
The case of the magistrate who is electoral 
registrnr is very different, because, though he 
may have got his information from various 
sources, he produces a list which has been com­
piled by himself, and he is not in the position of 
a magistrate hearing a charge made against a 
person, but he has made the charge himself. 
The 23rd section of the principal Act contem­
plates that after the electoral registrar has 
made a list, marking against certain names 
"dead," "left," or "disqualified," the list is 
to go before some other tribunal to decide 
whether that marking is correct or not. It seems 
only common sense that the tribunal to decide 
whether that marking is correct or not should not 
consist of the man who has made the marking. 
If the nnalogy with the case mentioned by the 
Home Secretary held good, and the person who 
supplied the information upon which the elec-

toral registrar acted came forward to support the 
objection raised to a name, there might be no 
cause to complain, but the information is 
brought to the electoml registrar anonymously. 
I have tried to correct that several times when 
:Election Bills hP,ve been before the House, 
by providing that that information should not 
be given secretly, but up to the present 
time it is given secretly. ThereforP, when 
the marked list is present, d to the revision 
court, the objections are made by the electoral 
registrar himself, and he is not the right per­
son under the circumstance; to adjudicate as to 
whether his marking has been correct or not. 
There are only one or two other matters in the 
Bill, the principal being the appointment of a 
principal electoral registrar. In regard to that 
the whole matter will hinge upon the person 
appointed. The great difficulty will be to 
get a person who is entirely free from 
political bias to occupy such a position. \Ve 
recognise that difficulty in other departments 
by the appointment of boards. \Ve appoint 
a Public Service Board because we find it 
almost impossible to discover any one indi­
vidual who will be the absolute embodiment 
of justice and impartiality. But here provision 
is made for the Governor in Council to appoint 
some person who shall be principal electoral 
registrar, and we must really wait until we see 
how he discharges his duty before, in that 
respect, we can pronounce this Bill to be 
good or otherwise. It all rests upon the appoint­
ment of that individual, and it seems n very 
great power to give the Government-to appoint 
a gentleman who is to occupy so very important 
a position. He ought to be strictly impartial and 
without party bias; butwhetheritis po•sibletofind 
such a person I am sure I do not know. Provision 
is made for a revision court consisting of a num­
ber of justices, and it may be pussi ble, with the 
number, that we shall get something approach­
ing justice and impartiality. That is the reason, 
I take it, why a number of just.ices sit upon the 
bench, and why in certain cases a nu m her of 
judges sit upon the Supreme Court bench-in 
order to get absolute justice fr"m the concurrence 
of a nu m her of minds bent upon the same 
subject. But this Bill provides fur placing the 
power in the hands of one individual, and I trust 
the Government will exercise a very great deal 
of discretion in the choice of the person whom 
they will appoint to such a responsible position. 

Mr. KERR : I hold with the leader of this 
party that it woulrl have h:en much better if this 
Bill had been brought in at the. commencement 
of the session. We all know that there is great 
diversity of opinion amongst m em hers of this 
House and amongst pL· J]Jle outside as to the 
dutieR of electoral registrars. It has been stated 
to-night that there are partisan benches, but I 
can say that members on this side of the House 
are not represented by any party on the benches. 

'!.'he SECRETARY ~'OR PUBLIC INSTRUCTION : 
You nre quite wrong. 

Mr. KERR: I can provemystatement, because 
it is pretty well known. that no man in this 
colony who i.- not a member of this House, but 
who is known to have Labour sympathies or to 
hold Lab•mr opinion<, has ever been appointed a 
justice of the peace. It is a well-known fact that 
this is a bnr to any man in this colony being 
appointed a justice of the peace. 

The HoME SECRETARY : I could name dozens. 
Mr KERR: The hon. gentleman may say 

that, but the experience of members on this side 
is that men have been nominated for the position 
who are in every way qu11lified to be justic,es of 
the peace, but they have not been appointed 
because their political opinions have been against 
them. 



1440 Eleations Aats [ASSEMBLY.] Amendment Bill. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIO INSTRUCTION: 
That is not correct. 

Mr. KERR : It is correct. I have proof that 
it is correct. The cases at Cunnamulla and 
Mackay have been rPferred to showing that 
electoral registrar" have, as police magistrates, 
s~t upon the revision court bench. While one 
hon. member was speaking he was asked whether 
he knew a regiRtrar who was a police magistrate 
that did not sit at a revision court. I know 
where a registrar who is a police magistrate 
declined to sit on the bench, and called upon the 
local justices of the peace to sit because he con­
sidered that he being the party who marked the 
roll had !lo right to sit and adjudicate upon that 
roll. Ltke the hon. member for Rockhamp­
ton North I am not in favour of the appoint­
ment of another Civil servant ; I believe the 
colony has enough of those gentlemen receiving 
good salaries. As to the Home Secretary saying 
that the inference drawn by the hon. member 
for Croydon and the hon. member for Rock­
hampton North in regard to the Under Home 
Secretary being under political influence was 
wrong, those who we rein the House when the Chief 
Secretary was speaking could come to no other 
logical conclusion. The hon. gentleman stated 
that the reason for the appointment of a principal 
registrar was to take this department away from 
political influence. What other conclusion could 
we come to than that the Under Home Secretary 
was under political influence? But, as the hon. 
member for Croydon stated, he and other hon. 
members have never had any reason to accuse 
the Under Home Secretary of using any political 
influence. 

The HmrE SEOR]j]TARY: Why make the imputa­
tion now? 

Mr. KERR : Because the Home Secretary 
endeavoured to show that the inference drawn by 
the hon. member for Rockhampton North was not 
correct. The Bill provides that no person before 
or by whom any claim has been declared or 
attested, or who has been in anywise concerned 
in the making, delivering, or sending a claim to 
a court or to an electoral registrar shall act as 
a member of the court when such claim is being 
heard or adjudicated upon. Some hon. members 
have stated that it will be an injustice, and I say 
that it will be a very great injustice in some of 
the 'Vestern towns of the colony. I have in my 
mind's eye a place where there are cmly two 
jusices of the peace in the township-there is no 
police magistrate-and those justices of the peace 
naturally will refuse to attest claims. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIO INSTRUCTION : Is 
there no state school? 

Mr. KERR : There is ; but the Minister for 
Instruction must remember that State school 
teachers do not desire to be mixed up in any way 
in attesting claims. There is a general fear with 
cla"ified officers that they must not have too 
much t0 do with the attesting of claims, if those 
claims are supposed to be of a particular kind. 
If either of the two justices of the peace in that 
township attested a claim, when the revision 
court came on what would be the con:;eqnence? 
If none of the country justices of the peace came 
in there would he no bench to hold a revision 
court. 'rherefore, I view clause 4 with a very 
great amount of suspicion. I stated when the 
Elections Bill went through last sesbion that it 
was a measure not to enable qualified persons to 
get their names on the roll, but to debar them 
from getting their names on the roll, and I say 
this Amending Bill is another attempt brought 
in at the end of Parliament to interfere with the 
rights and liberties of the people of this colony. 

Mr. LEAHY: Your leader said to-night that 
the Bill of last year was a very great improve­
ment. 

Mr. KERR: Our leader knows very little 
about the Bill--

MEMBERS on the Government side : Oh, oh ! 
Hear, hear! 

Mr. KERR : He knows very little about the 
Bill, in this way : Our leader is not labouring 
under the same disabilities. He represents a 
coast town, where there are any amount of 
justices of the peace and others who are in a 
position to attest claims. Our leader is not 
representing a Western constituency, or he would 
know the disabilities men labour under ; he 
would know something about the tricks that 
have been played under the Act of last 
session ; he would know something about the 
mean subterfuges used by a certain party in 
marking men off. There have been cases 
where men have been notified to appear at 
a revision court to be held on the 1st November. 
Those men left their work and were there to prove 
their claims, but there was no bench, and the 
court was postponed until the 8th November. 
Those men, being in employment and having 
ridden from fifty to eighty miles, were unable to 
go into the township again, and their names 
were struck off because they were not there in 
person when their names were called, Then 
there have been cases under the Act of last session 
where men who have been known to have resided 
in one electorate fifteen years have been struck 
off, and were unable to rPtain their names on the 
roll. I will not touch any further on this matter, 
because I intend to bring it before the House 
early next week when I get the information. As 
to the remedy this Bill is going to provide, I 
think it could have been very well left over, and 
I believe with the leader of this party that an 
amendment ought to be moved. If the Chief 
Secretary replies I hope he will give some intima­
tion as to whether he will accept any amend­
ment; if he does not, then I, with other hon. 
members on this side, will endeavour to amend 
the Bill ; and if it is not amended it had much 
better not be placed on the statute-book at all. 

Mr. Me MASTER: I differ from the hon. 
member who says this Bill will be of no use if it 
is placed on the statute-book. I think it will he 
a most useful measure. There are three clauses 
in it which to my mind are very necessary, and 
ought to become part of an electoral law. In the 
first place it is a step in the right direction to 
appoint an officer who shall supervise the rolls 
through the whole of the colony. At present that 
is done between the Under Secretary and the 
Government Printer; they have as much to do 
with correoting the rolls before they are printed 
as any body else. The returning officer has to 
revise to the best of his ability, but with one 
officer, whose time will be entirely devoted to the 
work, we shall be more likely to get a,n efficient 
roll than when three or four persons are tinkering 
at it, and between whom very often an injustice is 
done. Clause 3, giving the Governor in Council 
power to make that appointment, is a good one. 
Clause 4 is also essential I differ from those 
hon. members who almost state in words that 
registrars sitting in court are biassed-that they 
strike men off the roll or refuse to put names 
upon it knowingly for party purposes. I decline 
to believe that we have any such registrars in the 
colony. Hon. members must know that regis­
trars do not go about the country g'l.thering 
information in order to remove names from the 
roll, or to correct the roll in any way. 

Mr. KEOGH: Bulcock does that. 
Mr. Mo:HASTER : The hon. member seems 

very much afraid of Bulcock. It would he a good 
thing for him if he was as pure in his political 
carder as Bulcock. The registrars have to get 
the information regarding the roll from various 
sources. I believe they send a man round to 
ascertain whether the people whose names are on 
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the roll have removed. I know that is the case 
in my own electorate,· because people who have 
moved only from one street to another are 
marked on the roll as ''left." Many of those so 
marked are still entitled to vote, but many of 
them do not take the trouble to get their names 
restored. A great deal has been said about a 
registrar sitting in his capacity as police magis­
trate and adjudicating on the claims he himself 
has marked as "dead," "left," or "disquali­
fied." I do not think that is nearly so 
dangerous as the conduct of a man who, as a 
justice of the peac\e, goes about the country with 
his bag full of forms, which he fills up and attests, 
and at the revision court sits as a judge upon the 
claims he himself has filled up and attested. 
That ir; a glaring case, for not only is the man I am 
referring to a justice of the peace, but he is a candi­
date for a seat in this House. It is well known 
that there is such an individual in Brisbane. 

Mr. KEOGH: Who is he? 
Mr. McMASTER : The hon. member knows 

him very well. 
Mr. KEOGH : You should not make such accu­

sations unless you are prepared to prove them. 
Mr. McMASTER : I know very well that 

what I am saying is correct. This man has been 
going about canvas~ing, filling np claims, and 
attesting them for several years. 

Mr. HAMILTON: Is he a membe:c.of the.Honse? 
Mr. McMASTER: He is not a member yet; 

he contested the election once and is a candidate 
again, but I do not think the people will have him 
after all his trouble. This 4th clause will prevent 
such men careering about the country and then 
sitting as judges to revit~e claims ~ttested by 
themselves. A •member of Parliament is not 
allowed to go near the court. I wish they were 
prevented from attesting claims. But many 
people think it is the duty of a member to get 
them enrolled as voters. Only last week I 
received a lettfll·, "Please he good enough to 
pla0e my name on the electoral roll." I wish 
they would go to somebody else. I remember 
reading in the Press that wi1en a complaint wao 
made to the late Home Secretary, Sir Horace 
Tozer, of a magistrate wh<} refused to attest a 
claim for some reason or other, he said that if 
a case was reported to him he would strike his 
name off the commission. 

lYJr. LEAHY : I do not think he ever said any­
thing of the kind, because the magistrate him­
self is the best judge of the facts. 

Mr. McMASTER: I saw the statement made 
in the Press, at all events. Clause 4 will be use­
ful, inasmuch as any person such as I have 
indicated who· goes about canvassing and attest­
ing claims will not be allowed to adjudicate on 
claims of his own attesting. Olan:-e 9 is also a 
very good one. There are some members of 
local authorities who would make as good return­
ing officers as any we have in the colonv. I 
know one who within the last year had to resign 
his seat on the board with which he was con­
nected and of which he was a very useful 
~ember. I ha Ye known him myself for twenty­
SIX years to be an excellent citizen. Clause 9 
will remove the disability under which he labours 
and enable him to hold his ,,eat on the divisional 
board, for which the people demanded his servic~s. 
I hope the Bill will pass a' it is, as I believe it 
will be an improvement. There may be other 
amendments required in our electorai laws, but 
they would take a longer time than we have at 
our disposal this session. If we get this now, 
perhaps in the next Parliament we may get 
another .Electoral. Reform Bill, and by-and-by 
our law, If not qmte perfect, will, at all Hents, 
be as good as we can make it. Clause 4 of this 
Bill alone will be a great irnpr<•vement. 

Mr. KEOGH: The keynote in regard to thi; 
Bill has been sounded by the Home Secretary, 

1898-4v 

wbo told us that the great object of appointing 
these registrars was that the work in his office 
has so accumulated that it is an utter impossi­
bility to carry out the duties in the manner in 
which he would like them to be carried out. I 
am at one with the leader of this side of the 
House, who showed conclusively that these 
registrars are not required. We already have 
more of these billets than are required by the 
country. \Ve have quite sufficient Civil ser­
vants. With regard to the attestation of claims, 
I believe I have attested as many as any hon. 
member of this House. There are benches of 
magistrates which carry out the work of revision 
as honourably aB any men could. I have never 
sat on a revision bench. • 

The SEcRETARY Jl'OR PUBLIO LANDS : The law 
will not allow you. 

Mr. KEOGH: Since I have been a member 
of this House certainly I have not done so, but 
previouse to that there was nothing to prevent 
me occupying that position. Still, I hoid it is 
wrong for an electoral registrar, even if he is a 
police magistrate, to sit in a revision court when 
the claims of electors whom he has previously 
knocked off as registrar come up for revision. 
He is not likely to allow the claim of any elector 
whom he has prevwusly marked as "dis­
qualified," "left," or "dead." I trust the hon. 
gentleman in charge of the Bill will accept au 
amendment prohibiting police magistrates who, 
as electoral registrars, have sent out notices of 
disqualification from sitting on revision benches. 
The hon. member for Toowoomba has shown 
conclusively that something very irregular has 
taken place at Cunnamulla and Mackay. 

The SEcRETARY FOR PGBLIC LANDS : He did 
not father those statements-he only read them 
out of a paper. 

Mr. KEOGH : I have not heard any hon. 
member get up and contradict those statements. 
It has been shown that these things happened, 
and it has also been shown that in the Ounna­
mulla ca8e the police magistrate apologised for 
his action and for his language on that occasion. 
It has been shown that that man did not act 
honoumbly or consistently or within his rights as 
electoral registrar or police magistrate. 

Mr. ANNEAR : You know him very well. He 
is a good tnan: 

Mr. KEOGH: If he is the gentleman who is 
going to Ipswich, I hope he will not go there, 
nor the other man who has been nominated for 
Ipswich. 

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. member 
is going beyond the question before the House. 

Mr. KEOGH: I should be very sorry to go 
off the track, but I have been drawn off it by 
interjections. I believe that all claims should be 
collected by the police as they used to be in 
former timeR, when there was nothing of this 
kind of thing. Everyone who was entitled to a 
vote was placed on the roll. Of course it might 
mean a little more expense, but the expense 
would not be as great as that caused by the 
appointu1ent of these registrars. The police 
would do their duty honourably as they have 
done heretofore, and it would be one of the 
best things that could be done. It has been 
shown by members representing the Western 
country that 1t1any men in those parts have 
not got their names on the rolls. That is 
a !{reat 1•ity. Certainly we have greater 
facilities in the more settled districts for enrol­
ment. In the \V est men may have to travel 
miles and miiee in order to get a magistrate, in 
tht> first instance, to attest their alaims. It may 
happen that there are only one, two, or three 
justices of the peace in "' town, and as they have 
to sit in the reviHion court it is not at all likely 
that they will attest claims.. Of course, it has 
been suggested that the applicants can go to the 
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school teachers; hut I know that in many in­
stances teachers dn not like being called upon to 
attest electoral claims, or having anytliing to do 
to show their political proclivities. It would be 
far better, both for the teachers and for the 
Education Department, if they were not required 
to attest claims. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC LANDS : You 
desired that they should attest them last se•sion. 

Mr. KEOGH: No, I did not; I was not an 
advocate for school teachers attesting claims. 
With the leafier of the Opposition, I hold that 
any two respectable electors should be allowed to 
attest claims. 

The SECRETARY ~'OR PUBLIC INSTRUCTION : 
Then you would include tea:chers. 

Mr. KEOGH: I do not object to teachers 
attesting claims, but l say they dislike doing so, 
as they do not wish to be brought into the 
political arena. It would be far better if they 
did not perform that duty. But if yon allow 
teachers to attest claims, why not allow sergeants 
and officers of police to do so? Those men are 
certainly above any kind of suspicion, and I 
believe they would carry out these duties con­
scientiously. I trust that when the Bill goes 
into committee the Premier will be prepared to 
accept an amendment in that direction, and not 
deal with the mc,asure in a narrow-minded 
manner, but endeavour to make it one which will 
he acceptable to the country. 

Mr. McDONNELL: There is not very much 
in the Bill after you pass clauses 3 and -1, and I 
do not think there is much to object to in clause 
3, so long as we get a pe1·son for the position of 
principal electoral registrar who will conduct the 
office independent of Ministerial influence. I 
quite agree that there are a number of electoral 
registrars who perform their duty consistently 
and fairlv. At all events they try to do their 
duty in that way. There are some electoral 
registrar" in Brisbane, who, I believe, try to the 
hest of their abilhy to do what is fair. 
The portion of the Bill which seems to 
h:we created the most opposition is clause 4, 
and it is one that deserves a great dea.l of 
consideration. Certainly it will not affect places 
like Brisbane, where there are a large number of 
justices, but, as stated by the hon. member for 
Barcoo, it will materially affect country districts 
where there is a sparse population, and where 
there are very few justices of the peace. But in 
any case I hold that it is unfair to prevent a man 
from sittiug on a revision court for the distrJct 
of which he is a resident simply because he has 
attested a few claims. Local magistrates are 
often able to give information about their 
district and t{) act on their own knowledge, and 
it is not right that they should be precluded from 
sitting on the bench. My colle>t:;ue has referred 
to some party who is goin!;" round and filling up 
and attesting claims and then sitting on a bench 
at the court at which those claims are dealt with. 
I t}Jink I know the person the hon. member. 
referred to, but I shall not mention the name. 
My colleague must, however, admit that the 
occupation which the gentleman in question 
follows causes him to travel a good deal in the 
district in which he is interested. From time to 
time he meets people who find it inconvenient to 
come into town and get thP.Ir claims filled up and 
attested, and he is prepared to fill up their 
claims irrespective of the politimtl opinions of 
the claimants. 

Mr. McMASTER : But he sits in the court and 
adjudicates on those claims. 

Mr. McDONNELL: He may do so, but I 
ch11llenge the hon. member. or any other member 
of the House, to point to one single claim that 
he has filled up which has been rejected. 

Mr. McMABTER : He would not reject the 
claims he filled up himself. 

Mr. McDONNELL: The hon. member is 
only begging the question. I wish it to be 
distinctly understood that although the gentle· 
man in question is a candidate for Parliament, 
he is not a candidate in the Labour interest, 
There is nothing wrong in what he has done, 
and I say he occupies a far more honourable 
position than an hon. member opposite who pays 
a canvasser, who is a justice of the peace, to go 
round his electorate to fill up claims. The 
member I refer to sits on the Government side 
of the House, and his canvasser takes Yery good 
care that the persons whose claims he fills up 
arA supporters of that hon. member. 

Mr. McMASTER: Does that canvasser sit on 
the bench? 

Mr. McDONNELL : I am not aware whether 
he sits on the bench or not, but it is just possible 
that he does; and, furthermore, he is legally 
entitled to do so, because he is a resident in the 
electorate. I am satisfied that if this Bill is 
passed we must make the pNvision for attesting 
claims very much wider, because in some districts 
very few justices would be willing to attest claims 
by reason of the faet that they want to sit on the 
bench. When the Bill gets into committee hon. 
members will be afforded an opportunity of giv­
ing better facilities for attestation of claims. It 
has just occurred to me, in reference to the matter 
mentioned by my colleagne, that he has singled 
out one person for condemnation. 

Mr. McMASTER : I referred to more than one. 
Mr. McDONNELL : He referred to a candi­

date for Parliament who was doing this work. 
Now, there is an association called "the political 
ass~ciation," which is sending out begging cir­
culars all over the colony asking for money, not 
to get men on the roll but to do all they po"sibly 
can to keep legally-qualified Labour voters off the 
roll. 

The SPEAKER: I think the hon. member's 
remarks are not relevant to the question before 
the l:iouse. 

Mr. McDONNELL: Well, this Bill, so far 
as clause 4 is concerned, affects this association, 
and I was going to show that it works righ l into 
their hands. However, if you, Sir, rule me ant 
of order, I will not pursue that line of argument. 
But I think I am justified in saying that this 
aRsociation has already made a number of justices 
<>f the peace, and takes very good care to send 
them out to attest claims for all those who are 
believed to have the right political opinions. 

Mr. LEii.HY: You do the same thing. 
Mr. ]'rNNEY: What objection have you to 

that? 
Mr. JlilcDONNELL: That is the point. This 

association has such a stock of justices of the 
peace that this Bill plays right into their hands. 
The objection which has been raised to-night to 
another gentleman applies with greater force to 
these justices of the peace who are centred in the 
Courier building,,. 

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC LANDS: But this 
prevents them from sitting on the bench. 

Mr. McDONNELL : It prevents justices of 
the pe:>ce from sitting on the bench when they 
attest claims. There are very few justices of the 
peace outside of Brisbane who are not waited on 
and asked to atte~t claims, and those men will 
be deprived of sitting in the revision court. At 
the same time the assc•ciation to which I refer 
can pull their wires to such an extent and things 
are so arranged that they always have a stock of 
justices of the peace who can appear at the 
revision court. I know one court in Brisbane 
where one jnstice of the peace has been attilnd­
ing for years in the interests of a certain 
candidate. That gentleman in future will 
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take very good care that some of h1s col­
leagues connected with the association will do 
his work of attesting claims, so that he shall 
not be deprived of the duty he performs so faith· 
fully. I regret that the Government have not 
proposed to remove some of the restrictions 
which the Act of 1896 was .•upposed to remove. 
The hon. member for Barcoo has proveil that 
there is much dissatisfaction in the outside dis­
tricts with the working of the present electoral 
laws, and if the Government really desired to 
reform the electoral laws they would have shown 
more hone~ty of purpose by removing some of 
the restrictions which have croused the loss of 
hundreds of votes in some of the back districts. 
I hope that when the Bill gets into committee 
the amendments which have been foreshadowed 
hy the leader of the Labour party will be 
moved, and I shall support them. 

Mr. TURLEY: We have not been informed 
to any great extent as to the duties which this 
registrar will have to perform, \Ve have been 
simply told that there has been ~ certain amount 
of work accumulating in connection with the 
rolls in the office of the Home Secretary, and 
that it is necessary to take it off his shoulders. 
I quite believe that there i' a considerable 
amount of work, and the initiation of this 
~ystem will be a good thing ; but at the same 
time if we are to have a man who is unbiased 
we sh•ll have to remove him from political 
influence. I should like to know if it is pro­
posed that this officer shall fix up the whole of 
the work in connection with polling-places and 
so on? Is it the intention of the Government 
that all this work shall be taken out of the hands 
of the Home Secretary and handed over to this 
officer? This matter of polling-places has been 
the bone of contention many times. On many 
occasions where a number of men have been con­
gregated together, and b!tve asked the Government 
to give them a polling-place, their reque"t has 
been refused, bRcause their political opinions 
have been known. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBT"IC INSTRUCTION : 
All assertion. 

Mr. TURLEY : The hon. member knows that 
it is not so. At the last two general elections 
men had io ride fifty and seventy miles to record 
their votes because the Government refused their 
applications for polling-places. \Ve know very 
well that at Opalton, where there were fifty men 
in one place, a request for a polling-place was 
refused because it was recognised that the 
majority would vote for a certain candidate. 

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC INSTRUCTION : 
The application was too late, and you know it. 

Mr. TURLEY: It was not too late; it was 
admitted that it was in time. The Home Secre­
tary was away when the application reached the 
office, and when it was referred to the hon. 
member who acted in his place it was too late. 
That is one of the things that tee electoral 
registrar will have to decide. But there is 
another question : Will this officer be an officer 
of Parliament purely, or will he be an officer of 
the Government? If he is to be at the beck and 
call of a Minister we might as well let the Under 
Secretary continue to do the work. 

The SECRETARY FOR PGBLIC INSTRUCTION : 
He has too much other work. 

Mr. TURLEY: He has evid, ntly been able 
to get through the work so far, and I do not 
think the work in connection with electoral re­
quirements is increasing to a great extent. This 
man should be removed as far as possible from 
political influence in order that he may be abl.e 
to exercise his own judgment in all cases sub­
mitted to him. In regard to the atte•tation of 
claim", it seems to me that the whole question 
has been juggled with from 1892 to the present. 
J ust10es have apparently entered into~!a sort of 

conspiracy to refuse to sign claims. They do not 
think it is their duty to sign claims, and when 
they do sign them they do it in such a way 
that they can be thrown out for some 
informality by the revision court. A case of this 
kind came under my notice last week. Three 
claims were filled in, and the men were told to go 
to a certain magistrate. They went to his house, 
and his wife met them and asked them what they 
wanted. They replied that they wanted him to 
witness their claims; she went in and came back 
saying that he was too busy to attend to electoral 
matters. That was all right, and the men went 
aw"y to another magistrate-a very old hand on 
the bench-and what did he do? He simply 
witnessed the signature, and the declaration was 
left altogether void. These claims were not sent 
directly to the court, but happened to pass 
through the hands of a man who knew exactly 
what would become of them if they were taken 
to the court in that state; and when it was 
pointed ont to this magistrate that he had 
neglected to do the work which he should do 
in accordance with his appointment he said, 
"That is my business." That was not his busi­
ness ; it was public business, and he should 
have been i!llmediately removed from the corn· 
mission of the peace. Whatever political party 
a man belongs to he has no right to use his 
position to prevent people from getting on the 
rolls of the colony. 

'rhe SPEAKER: I do not see that the 
matt,,r the hon. member is now di~cussing is at 
all relevant to this Bill. 

Mr. TURLEY: There is a clause in the Bill 
which flays that persons who sign these claims 
shail not eit on the bench at the revision court. 
It has been stated that the holding of the dual 
posiGion of magistrate and registrar by one per­
son doe''· not act detrimentally to the interests of 
the people who wish to get their names on the 
rolls, hut I think it does. Information i3 
furni~hed to a registrar, who is also a police 
magistrate. I understand that a registrar has to 
receive information from any qnarter, and in 
accordance with the Act he is supposed to verify 
that information before he acts upon it. Suppose 
we have a registrar who is also a police magis­
trate, and who does not take any particular 
interest in verifying the information he has 
received. 

Mr. LEAHY : ·what do you mean by "verify"? 
Mr. TURLEY: By making all possible in· 

quiry as to whether the person• whose names 
have been objected to should be left off the roll 
or not. I know that the rule in Brisbane is to 
allow the registrars to employ certain people 
during the month of July to verify the informa· 
tion received, and they are also enabled to 
utilise the services of the police for the purpose. 
Bnt suppose we have a man who is electoral 
rec:istr.tr and also police magistrate for a district, 
and who is careles• in this matter, and does nob 
make inquiry to verify the objE'ctions he has 
rece1ved. When he sit,, on the bench afterwards 
to deal with those cases I say it is only cover· 
ing up his own neglect. 

Mr. Mc::viASTER : If he does it. 
l\1r. TURLEY: It has been done in many 

c:mes. In a case where an agent is representing 
a person whose name has been objected to, and 
the electoral registrar is not also the magistrate 
presiding at the revision court, he can be called 

a witness, and asked what steps he has taken 
to verify the information upon which he has 
acted. But where he occupies the dual position, 
and sits on the bench at the revision court, the 
case is· different, because he cannot then be called 
as a witness by the agent for the person objected 
to, and be will decline to answer questions from 
the bench. That is where the weakness comes 
in. I do not think the Bill covers that, and 
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it should be dealt with. I do not see that 
there can be any objection to any amendment 
of the Bill being accepted to provide that where 
a man holds the dual position of electoral regis­
trar and police magistrate he shall not sit ou 
the bench at electoral or revision courts. I do 
not know that he does wish it, but if the hon. 
gentleman does not wish to do an absolute 
injustice to a large number of people in the 
W astern portions of the colony he will accept 
amendments dealing with per>'ons holding the 
dual positions I refer to, and also extending 
the facilities by which ]JPople may be able to get 
their electoral claims attested. 

The PREMIER, in reply : I may say that the 
debate has been very interesting, and has, I 
think, fully justified me in submitting this Bill 
to the House. It has demonstrn,ted most clearly 
the unsatisfactory condition of things at the 
present time, aud the necessity for the appoint­
ment of a responsible officer to attend to this 
duty. My word" with regard to the removal 
of these matters from political influence have 
been misconstrued or twisted to imply that 
such influence had been exercised in such matters 
by the Home Secretary or the Under S'lcretary. 
On the contrary, I pointed out that the late 
Home Secretary was most reluctant to interfere 
in such matters without fully ascertaining 
whether there was any solid foundation for the 
complaints left from time to time with the 
department as to· irregularities committed or 
alleged to have occurred within the knowledge of 
the electoral registrars or clerks of petty sessions. 
It was a mattvr of difficulty with the late 
Home Secretary that he had no one in the 
department who was directly respomible to 
communicate with those officers, and they had 
been in the habit of appointing one of the lead­
ing police magistrates to inspect and report in 
cases of irregularities or discrepancies to which 
I have referred. Neither the Home Secretary 
nor the Under Secretary-whose name has been 
brought into the debate most unnecessarily­
have introduced anything like political influence. 
On the contrary, they have held thernsel ves 
studiously aloof, because if they had acted 
directly there is no doubt that political influence 
would have been attributed. I wieh to exonerate 
the department from any such suspicion, and I 
regret that my remarks in that connection 
should have been either misconceived or misre­
presented. 

Question-'l'hat the Bill be now read a second 
time-put and passed ; and the committal of the 
Bill made an order for Tuesday next. 

WEIGHTS AND MEASURES BILL. 

SECOND READING. 

This order having been called, 
After a pause, the Secretary for Agriculture 

entered the Chamber. 

The SPEAKER said: The hon. member has 
not treated the House with the courtesy that it 
is entitled to. This order might have lapsed 
durmg his absence. I trust that it will not 
occur again. 

The SEORETARYFORAGRIOUI.TURE: 
I can only say that no discourtesy to the House 
was intended by me. When I left the Chamber 
a little while ago the second reading of another 
Bill was being discussed, and I had no idea that 
this would be called on so soon. The Bill of 
which I am now moving the second reading is a 
Bill that has arisen from an agitation that has 
been going on for some two or three years in the 
farming districts, and which culminated in a 
resolution passed at a large conference of farmers 

held in Rockhampton in May last. The resolu-· 
tion was to this effect-

That in the opinion of this Conference it is necessary 
that Parliament pass an Act. providing for an efficient 
inspector of weighbridges, weighing-machines, weights 
and measures : also giving the, vendors of agricultural 
produce, or associated bodies of the same, the power to 
appoint a check clerk or agent to check the weighing 
or analy>is of their produce at the place of delivery to 
the buyer, or wherever its weight or value may be 
determined; and that the Government be requested to 
introduce such legislation next session as shall provide 
that all owners of weighbridges, weighing-machines, 
etc., shall keep and maintain a complete set of standard 
weights to the full capacity of such weighing-machines, 
and that any properly appointed inspector shall have 
access to such weights for the purpose of testing such 
weighing-machines or weighbridges at such times as may 
be deemed necessary 

We have not seen our way to carry out all the 
demands of that resolution. It asks that those 
who supply any farm produce sold by analysis 
should have the right to see it analysed. That 
refers especially to milk sold "by a certain test or 
to sugarcanP, which in one place in the colony 
at any rate is sold by the farmers by analysis. 
This Bill provides for two matters. Clause 4 
provides that where farm produce is sold by 
weight the seller or the buyer shall have per­
mission to check the weight at the weighbridge 
over which it is sold. It gives to the sellers 
and buyers of farm produce the same rights 
which the coalminers now have. The coal­
miners who sell their labour in a ton of coal 
are permitted to appoint a check-weighman to 
represent them- to see that the weight is cor­
rectly given. This clause provides that the 
sellers of farm produce shall be put in the 
same position, and I think the whole House 
will acknowledge that this is perfectly fair. 
Without ha.ving an accurate record of what is 
sold over the weig-hbridges in the more temperate 
regions of the colony, I am aware that nearly 
750,000 tons of cane are sold over the weighbridges 
at the mills-an amount equal to 75,000 tons of 
sugar was sold this year ove,r the weigh bridges to 
the mills and paid for by weight. It is true that 
at most of the large mills the owners have no 
objection to the appointment of acheckweighman, 
but they cannot successfully instruct their 
weighbridge clerks to allow the method in which 
the weight is checked to be closely looked at; 
and weighbridge clerks naturally would resent 
any such order even if it was given. What we 
propose is to give the farmers-especially the 
sellers of cane-as a right what they now obtain 
in most of the mills by the courtesy and kindness 
of the owners of the mills. There are, of course, 
other places where that permission is denied, 
and it is necessary where a man is under con­
tract, say for five years, to deliver a certain 
quantity of produce at the mill and sell it by 
weight, that he should have an absolute right 
to see iL weighed. The second part of the Bill 
applies to the inspection of weighbridges. It is 
a somewhat difficult subject, and it was thought 
~.t first that the existing Weights and Measures 
Act might meet the case, but when that Act 
was passed in 1852 the establishment of platform 
weighbridges was never contemplated. It was 
obviously intended to apply to steelyards, and 
a few balance machines. An attempt was made 
previously, by the appointment of inspectors in 
some di8tricts, to bring weighbridges under the 
Act of 1852, but it failed. Those briefly are the 
two objects of the Bill. I have no hesitation 
in recommending those objects to the House, and 
I move that the Bill be now read a second time. 

Question put and passed ; and the committal 
of the Bill made an order for to-morrow. 

The House adjourned at twenty-one minutes 
to 11 o'clock. 




